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Brief Overview
The 14 hectare Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens (RTBG) was established 
in 1818 on the current site. It is the only botanic gardens in Tasmania 
providing an important botanical, horticultural, educational, cultural and 
interpretation resource to the State. It is of national significance in terms of 
its cultural landscape and heritage values. 

The RTBG is located in a culturally significant precinct, comprising 
the Gardens, Government House, the Queens Domain and the former 
Beaumaris Zoo site (home of the last living Tasmanian Tiger in the 1930s). 
The RTBG is an important Aboriginal and European cultural heritage site. 

As one of Australia’s premier cool climate gardens with a plant collection in 
excess of 6,000 species, the RTBG strives to provide a range of experiences 
that will enhance the community’s awareness and appreciation of plants 
and the Gardens’ cultural heritage. The RTBG is distinguished by a number 
of unique collections and houses one of the largest collections of conifers in 
the southern hemisphere. 

The Tasmanian native collection is significant due to the unique nature 
of Tasmania’s flora with around 30% of species being endemic to the State. 
Complementing this is the Tasmanian Seed Conservation Centre (TSCC), 
which since it was established in 2005 has become the cornerstone of the 
Botanical Gardens conservation strategy currently holding 1,322 collections 
of 990 taxa and 43 million seeds. 

The RTBG is home to the world’s only Subantarctic Plant House which 
holds collections from Macquarie Island and links the RTBG with the 
Antarctic community.
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Dear Minister,

The Board of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens, 
incorporated by the Botanical Gardens Act 2002, has pleasure 
in submitting, the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Annual 
Report for the year ending 30th June 2014 in accordance with 
Division 3.17.1 of that Act

The Gardens are an important element of the Tasmanian experience. 

On one site they reveal significant built and planted examples of 

Tasmania’s early colonial past alongside beautiful horticultural 

and botanical displays including contemporary displays like the world’s only Subantarctic Plant House and the 

nationally televised Tasmanian Community Food Garden which you kindly co-opened. 

Behind the scenes the RTBG has had staff as far afield as Macquarie Island where work was successfully 

undertaken to increase the on-island seed orchard for the critically endangered cushion plant Azorella 

macquariensis a program that was funded through grants and philanthropic support.

The RTBG also reaches out across Tasmania with Education programs held in Smithton and at the historic 

Clarendon House. Interest in the RTBG’s innovative approach to horticultural education extends beyond 

Tasmania with staff this year providing advice to both Adelaide and the Gold Coast Botanic Gardens. 

This work and the many other projects and programs highlighted in this Annual Report demonstrate the 

RTBG’s continual progress against the goals outlined in the RTBG Strategic Master Plan 2009. 

We thank you very much for you enthusiastic engagement in RTBG activity with your visits to open the 

Tasmanian Community Food Garden and to help harvest the bounty of the new garden with our community 

support partner Second Bite. 

In submitting this report we would also like to offer our thanks to everyone else who has provided support and 

contributed toward the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Garden’s achievements including the Secretary and staff of 

the Department of Primary Industries Water and the Environment and the staff, Friends of the Royal Tasmanian 

Botanical Gardens and our many volunteers. Their combined efforts and ongoing contributions are vital to the 

development and success of the Gardens.

Yours Sincerely,

Damian Bugg  

Chairman

Letter to the Minister
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On behalf of the Board of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens 
it is my pleasure to present the Annual Report for 2013-2014.

I have commented in previous reports on the challenges facing the Gardens 

and the wonderful contribution made by the staff and management at the 

Gardens in meeting those challenges. The Gardens will be 200 years old in 

2018 and that important milestone brings with it the need to be vigilant in 

maintaining our infrastructure and the integrity of our Botanical estate. 

We are indeed fortunate that the Gardens staff are so committed to this 

precious community asset.

This Annual Report documents the extent and quality of the work and research being undertaken at the 

Gardens and, as you read it, you will see that not only does this work maintain and enhance the Gardens, 

it also draws the community in to the Gardens to share in the simple but essential pleasure obtained from 

the healthy pursuit of gardening.

During the year one of the two major projects being undertaken within the Gardens, the Community Food Garden, 

was completed and formally opened by the Minister in April. The project had many challenges, not the least of 

which was the strong sense of loss felt by the community with the removal of Pete’s Patch to make space for the 

development. The delicate task of successfully negotiating the removal of this much loved feature at the Gardens 

was greatly assisted by the tangible support given to the project by both Peter himself and Tino Carnevale. I am 

sure that this, and the coverage given by the ABC, has assisted the early success of this exciting development 

within the Gardens. The next stage of this development, the Living Learning Centre, is now in the planning phase.

This year the Board has had to explore ways of achieving a better return from some of the Gardens assets while 

at the same time enhancing the ‘experience’ for visitors to the Gardens. A seldom acknowledged fact is the level 

of community interest in and support for the Gardens which is demonstrated by the almost 400,000 visitors to the 

Gardens every year. It is important that any attempt to achieve a better commercial outcome for the Gardens does 

not detract from the core values of the Gardens while enhancing the quality of the visitor experience. 

As we take steps to achieve the best outcomes from our commercial operations we will keep this key goal in focus.

The achievements of the staff in once again obtaining grant funding, maintaining and enhancing the Gardens, 

in furthering botanical research and community understanding of the Gardens are documented in the Report. 

I congratulate the staff on a job well done and thank them for their dedicated service in maintaining the high 

standards for which the Gardens have become known.

During the year our long serving Director, Lesley Kirby, resigned to pursue community based interests closer to 

her home. On behalf of the Board I wish to thank Lesley for all her work at the Gardens and for the way in which 

she strove to achieve the best outcome for the Gardens. During Lesley’s absence from the gardens and following 

her resignation, Deputy Director Mark Fountain has acted as Director. Much has been achieved under Mark’s 

devoted leadership and I also thank him for the commitment he has given during the year.

The Gardens are fortunate to receive dedicated support from a busy group of volunteers, the Friends. 

The visitor experience at the Gardens is enhanced by the behind the scenes and hands on assistance 

given so generously by the Friends. Thank you.

Finally, I would like to thank the Board for their support and work towards the goals we have set for the Gardens.

Yours Sincerely,

Damian Bugg  

Chairman

From the Chairman
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To paraphrase Charles Darwin: 
“It’s not the strongest of the species that 
survives. It is the one that is the most 
adaptable to change.” 

While changes in botanical gardens can 

mostly be forecast and planned, gardens 

can be, and occasionally are, subject to 

what ecologists and other scientist’s 

call stochastic or random events. In the 

‘ecology’ of a botanical garden these 

changes can range from large-scale 

events like global economic factors or a 

change of government and a consequent 

change in policy and direction, to internal, 

economically driven change, and change 

wrought by the loss of a staff member 

or position. In ecology, resilience is the 

capacity of an ecosystem (and the life 

forms within it) to respond to change and 

disturbance by adapting, managing and 

recovering quickly. How an organisation 

reacts to these ‘random’ events is a 

measure of its resilience and 

long-term sustainability. 

This year has seen a number of changes 

including a change in Government with 

significant changes in direction and 

focus. In line with the Governments 

new directions, the RTBG Board and 

management are committed to maximising 

the business potential of the Garden’s 

Visitor Centre and the site as a whole 

while at the same time striving to enhance 

the visitor experience. The Gardens 

were already considering changes to the 

operation of the RTBG’s Restaurant and 

the Board and management have moved 

quickly to respond to opportunities that 

will help to ensure that the RTBG remains 

financially sustainable.

Another significant opportunity that 

aligned perfectly with the RTBG’s strategic 

goals was predicated by an approach from 

MONA (the Museum of Old and New 

Art) to discuss the RTBG’s involvement 

in the development and support of 

specialist school kitchen gardens. The 

RTBG along with other key stakeholders 

works as a member of the steering 

committee for what is now known as the 

24 Carrot Garden program. The program 

has received significant philanthropic 

support and been very successful with 

six gardens completed and another six 

in various stages of planning. The results 

demonstrate the importance and value of 

constructive partnerships.

The completion of the Tasmanian 

Community Food Garden (TCFG) is the 

culmination of another major change, 

this time as a result of long term planning. 

On one level the new garden aims to ‘break 

the mould’ of the standard rectangular 

vegetable patch, on another level the 

TCFG is a new model for community 

engagement and education in the areas 

of community gardens, food production 

and healthy living. The new garden is now 

a regular feature on ABC TV’s Gardening 

Australia program and is already very 

popular with our visitors, especially those 

from interstate. The new garden has also 

delivered over a tonne of vegetables to 

be distributed to those in need by our 

community partner Second Bite. 

The TCFG was largely constructed 

by RTBG’s Operations team with the 

Horticultural team responsible for the 

planting design and layout. 

To carry through the ecology analogy - 

ecology is the study of community and 

community interactions, botanical gardens 

thrive through their engagement with 

community. The three projects highlighted 

above all demonstrate differing ways 

the RTBG engages and interacts with its 

community. That interaction is carried 

through all our programs and most 

notably and obviously through our events 

programs and our education programs 

with their state wide reach. 

The programs referred to above cover 

only a fraction of the work undertaken 

by the Gardens. The work of the RTBG’s 

Horticulture, Aboriculture, Estate, 

Learning and Community Engagement, 

Marketing and Events, Tasmanian Seed 

Conservation Centre, Botanical Resources, 

Business and Visitor Services, Operations 

and Management teams are covered 

in more detail in this annual report. 

The work of the RTBG’s staff is supported 

by the efforts of the Friends of the 

Gardens and through the dedication of 

the many volunteers who work for our 

other specific volunteer programs in areas 

as diverse as: the Seed Bank, the Orchid 

Conservation Program, Visitor Services, 

the growing groups and Tour Guides. 

In addition the Friends of the Gardens, 

generously provided funding to assist with 

staff development and to support the work 

of the Orchid Conservation centre

Personally, it has been a challenging 

year and I acknowledge the support of 

my colleagues within the Department 

of Primary Industry Water and the 

Environment and the support and 

understanding of the RTBG Board and 

especially the Chairman of the Board 

Damian Bugg. I would also like to thank 

the staff and management of the RTBG 

for their strong support and their absolute 

commitment and dedication to their work. 

Lastly it is essential to recognise the 

support of the Minister for Environment 

Parks and Heritage, Matthew Groom. 

The Minister visited the RTBG on short 

notice very early in his tenure to help open 

the Tasmanian Community Food Garden 

and has found time in his busy schedule to 

return to support the work of one of our 

community partners Second Bite. 

He has acknowledged a strong connection 

to the RTBG and very clearly recognises 

the value of the Gardens to the community.

Botanical Gardens are long lasting 

institutions because of their resilience 

and adaptability. Based on my observations 

of botanical gardens in other parts 

of the world, they are also important 

components of their community’s ‘ecology’ 

as both a measure of community health 

and wellbeing and as focal points for 

community development and change. 

Mark Fountain 

Acting Director

Acting Director’s Report
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The Vision of the RTBG is to create 
and maintain an exceptional garden that 
enriches Tasmania’s social and cultural 
life, educates the community about the 
importance of plants and contributes to 
the conservation of the flora of Tasmania 
and the world.

The Vision

•	 Sets	aspirational	aims	for	the	

reputation of excellence within 

the international arena;

•	 Provides	a	focus	on	Tasmania	as	

the locus for the operations and 

the identity of the Gardens (i.e. is 

sense of place but also as a focus for 

collections); and

•	 Specifies	that	the	Gardens	contribute	

to flora conservation initiatives.

RTBG Mission

The transformation of vision into 

reality is an active process in which the 

organisation’s mission is a central guiding 

force, therefore, in common with other 

botanical gardens, the RTBG will:

•	 Act	as	an	ex	situ	repository	for	species	

of conservation significance and 

participate in other conservation 

programs aimed at preserving bio-

diversity in the world; and

•	 Incorporate	plants	of	an	economic	

value to the community.

In achieving its mission, the RTBG will 

create and maintain core/priority plant 

collections based on Tasmania’s flora and 

associated cool climate flora from the 

southern hemisphere.

In respect to its history, the RTBG 

will maintain:

•	 The	Gardens	in	a	manner	that	

recognises and interprets the layered 

history of the site from Aboriginal 

times through to the present;

•	 Identified	heritage	collections	of	

plants that are of State, national and 

international significance for their 

historic heritage values; and

•	 The	place	in	a	manner	that	respects 

its important landscape and sense 

of place values.

The mission reiterates the aspiration to 

excellence, identifies the importance of 

the Gardens to the Tasmanian community, 

provides focus on the experience of the 

place through education, emphasises the 

role of the RTBG in conservation and 

identifies the core values that underpin 

the place as Tasmania’s botanic garden 

i.e. Tasmanian endemic flora and 

associated cool climate plants from the 

southern hemisphere and the heritage 

values of the site. 

RTBG Organisational Values

In achieving its vision and mission, the 

RTBG is committed to a range of values 

that will guide its operation. These values 

include:

•	 Sustainability;

•	 Pursuit	of	excellence;

•	 Fair	dealing	in	commercial	and	

community service;

•	 Social	and	environmental	

consciousness;

•	 Scientific	inquiry	and	integrity;

•	 Public	accessibility	and	

responsiveness;

•	 Staff	involvement	in	planning 

and programs;

•	 Recognition	of,	and	assistance	for,	

friends, volunteers and supporters;

•	 Administrative	efficiency	and	

accountability; and

•	 Respect	and	recognition	for	

employees and all other stakeholders.

Vision, Mission and Values

RTBG Annual Report 20148



RTBG Management Goals

Goal 1
To sustainably manage the core 
values of the RTBG as Tasmania’s 
botanical garden. 

This goal addresses the definition of 

the RTBG as a ‘Tasmanian Botanical 

Garden’ and recognises the significant 

values embodied in the Gardens and 

that these values must be managed 

in a sustainable manner if the RTBG 

is to be considered successful. 

This goal also addresses a principle 

requirement to maintain the integrity 

of the RTBG as a true botanical gardens 

through appropriate curation of 

living collections, involvement in the 

conservation of the world’s flora and 

the conduct of targeted research.

Goal 2
To promote and manage the Gardens 
to ensure its users have the opportunity 
to attain a quality experience of the place 
and its values.

This goal addresses the use value of the 

Garden and the benefits to be derived 

from the successful management of 

the RTBG as an education and training 

centre, a community asset and a tourism 

destination.

The management of the visitor experience 

is directly related to people’s expectations 

for the Gardens as a destination for daily 

life and/or for tourism.

Goal 3
To ensure there is sufficient capacity 
to sustainably manage the RTBG.

This goal addresses the core operational 

activities of the Gardens and recognises 

that the RTBG has a responsibility to 

achieve a consistent and integrated 

approach to the management of the 

Gardens and that to achieve this the 

RTBG must have the legislative power, 

the organisational and procedural 

capacities and the funding necessary 

to implement, monitor and evaluate 

the strategies set out in the SMP.

The principle goals have been formulated to describe the outcomes that the RTBG is trying to achieve in pursuit of its vision and mission 
and through the application of the above values to its operations whilst remaining cognizant of its capacity to fund its activities. These goals 
in turn suggest a range of more specific strategies for their achievement that are included later in this document. The RTBG’s goals are:
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Board Members 
Mr Damian Bugg Prof Margaret Britz Ms Nicky McKibben (from 19/12/2013)

Mr Scott Gadd Mr Roger Viney Mr Douglas Davey (from 19/12/2013)

Mr Kim Evans (until 5/3/2014) Dr John Whittington (from 8/5/2014)

In accordance with the Botanical Gardens Act 2002 , the RTBG Board comprises 
seven members appointed by the Minister, one of which is the Secretary of the 
Department of Primary Industries, Parks, Water and the Environment.

The Board is responsible for the management of the RTBG in accordance with 
its Strategic Master Plan and Business Operational Plan. The overarching 
aim of the Board is to balance the recreational, educational and tourism needs 
of the government and general public with the need to conserve and enhance 
the Gardens and undertake research into, and preservation of, its botanical, 
horticultural, biological and cultural interests.
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Governance

The RTBG is a State government 

statutory organisation, governed by 

the Botanical Gardens Act 2002 and 

administered by the Department of 

Primary Industries, Parks, Water and 

the Environment (DPIPWE). A Board 

of seven members, appointed by the 

Minister, manages the RTBG under the 

Act. The current business model provides 

for an annual State government grant 

supporting approximately 52.9% of the 

RTBG’s current total operating budget, 

with the other 47.1% of funds sourced 

from RTBG generated activities.

Asset Management 

The RTBG maintains a register of all 

assets exceeding $1,000 in accordance 

with Treasury requirements and a general 

register for assets less than $1,000. 

Database records are also provided for 

specialist collections including plants, 

library and herbarium. A computerised 

point of sale system provides an inventory 

of all retail stock.

Acquisitions, disposals and write-offs 

are recorded. An Asset Register Valuation 

has valued the RTBG’s assets at over 

$14m. The Strategic Conservation and 

Asset Management Plan determine 

the priorities and nature of works 

for the maintenance of assets within 

the Gardens.

Risk Management

The RTBG takes a proactive approach 

to Risk Identification and Mitigation, 

and has developed a Risk Profile and 

comprehensive Risk Mitigations 

Strategies associated with all aspects 

of operations. The RTBG manages risk 

through participation in the whole of 

government risk management fund for 

staff worker’s compensation coverage. 

Public liability, professional indemnity, 

motor vehicle and personal accident 

risks are managed through brokered 

insurance policies.

Our Staff

The RTBG recognises and values the 

wealth of experience and knowledge of 

our staff, which have helped to develop 

and manage these gardens. The RTBG 

manages its human resources in line 

with staff requirements, the State Service 

Act 2002 and DPIPWE policies and 

guidelines ensuring that staff policies and 

procedures are consistent and fair.

Managing Diversity

The RTBG is committed to the principles 

and values of diversity in the workplace 

and maintains relevant statistics in 

response to workplace initiatives. 

Workplace Health And Safety

The RTBG is committed to providing 

a safe and healthy workplace through 

adherence to relevant legislation and 

implementation and monitoring of 

appropriate work practices. A WH&S 

Committee provides a representative and 

professional development opportunity for 

all staff to be actively involved in a wide 

range of Gardens-related WH&S matters. 

The Committee meets monthly and 

records outcomes and recommendations 

to RTBG management. It also implements 

regular WH&S site audits and reviews 

procedures and work practices.

Worker’s compensation claims are 

actively managed through DPIPWE and 

the Department’s contract rehabilitation 

services, which have provided invaluable 

assistance to staff with active worker’s 

compensation claims.

How We Operate
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During 2013-2014, the RTBG worked 
to make positive contributions towards the 
achievement of the Governments policies 
and objectives. 

Tackling Tasmania’s unemployment 
rate / Creating a job ready generation

The RTBG continues to provide a wide 

range of employment and training 

opportunities to Tasmanians from all 

sectors of the community. In addition, the 

RTBG continues to provide opportunities 

for volunteer engagement to assist 

individuals to improve their skills and 

confidence as an aid to finding employment. 

The Gardens remain committed to 

advocating lifelong learning and skills 

development among staff and volunteers 

by providing structured, accredited 

professional development opportunities 

at all levels within the organisation, 

in addition, the Gardens will continue 

to offer a range of apprenticeships and 

traineeships throughout the organisation.

The Gardens endeavour to provide a broad 

range of educational programs aimed 

at meeting the needs of the community 

including VET programs, school curriculum 

based programs, horticultural programs 

designed specifically for the aged, migrant 

groups and those with disabilities, as 

well as community programs focusing on 

horticultural and environmental topics. 

The RTBG recognises the immense value 

of the contribution of its employees in 

ensuring the prosperity and sustainability 

of its operations. It remains committed to 

working with staff to provide a safe, flexible 

and rewarding workplace that encourages 

healthy work-life balances. 

Additional support for people living 
with a disability / Celebrating seniors 
/ Children, Young people and Families 
/ A long term plan for mental health

The RTBG continues to provide a safe, 

enriching and relaxing environment for the 

wider community to enjoy. The Gardens 

will maintain a strong focus on continuous 

improvement and monitoring in relation to all 

aspects of Occupational Health and Safety.

Through its Corrective Services Inmate 

Labour and Training program, the Gardens 

will continue to provide offenders with 

meaningful work and re-socialisation 

opportunities to assist them in successfully 

reintegrating into the community. 

In an effort to promote healthy lifestyle 

choices the Gardens will continue to 

provide a venue for participating in exercise 

and leisure activities in an environment that 

is safe, welcoming and stress free. 

The Gardens continues to provide a diverse 

range of stimulating, educational and 

enjoyable school and community programs 

to encourage interaction with, and 

understanding of the natural world.

The Gardens recognises the valuable 

contribution made by volunteers and 

supporters at all levels of its operations. 

The Gardens will continue to provide 

enriching opportunities for participation 

by volunteers throughout the organisation, 

and will ensure volunteers receive 

appropriate training and support to assist 

their endeavours.

Through ongoing support of events 

such as Mental Health Week, as well as 

the provision of horticultural education 

programs aimed at providing assistance to 

Tasmania’s growing migrant communities, 

the Gardens will continue to promote 

diversity within the broader community. 

Growing jobs in the creative industries 
/ Growing our Tourism Industry / 
Unlocking the potential of our parks

Through its rich and diverse annual 

cultural and events programs the Gardens 

continues to provide employment 

opportunities for those working in the arts 

and cultural sector. In addition, the Gardens 

will continue to develop and promote 

cultural events that reflect the vibrancy and 

diversity of Tasmania’s cultural identity. 

The Gardens celebrated our multicultural 

community through ongoing support of 

events such as Harmony Day and the 

inclusion of migrant communities and other 

events and festivals.

The Gardens are currently one of the most 

visited cultural venues in Tasmania with 

visitation in excess of 400,000 annually. 

The Gardens will continue to vigorously 

promote and interpret Tasmania’s rich 

cultural heritage within Tasmania, nationally 

and internationally. 

As custodians of a significant cultural 

heritage landscape and collections, the 

Gardens provide sound stewardship of the 

cultural heritage assets under its control. 

Aboriginal culture and heritage is recognised 

through significant key themes outlined in 

the RTBG’s Thematic Interpretation Plan 

and the Strategic Master Plan.

The Gardens continues its programs of 

Visitor and Community Surveys as well as 

comprehensive stakeholder consultation 

processes.

Backing small business / Growing 
Tasmania’s hospitality industry

The RTBG runs a number of activities to 

sustain its operations and continues to 

provide a diverse range of high quality 

products, services and activities to meet 

the needs of visitors to Tasmania. 

The RTBG provides additional 

opportunities for small business through 

the lease of its restaurant and catering 

services and through business linkages to 

the Gardens events.

Looking to the future with energy

As custodians of an iconic cultural heritage 

landscape, the Gardens provide sound 

stewardship of the cultural heritage assets 

under its control.

Independently and in partnership with 

others, the Gardens will continue to 

strive to protect and conserve Tasmania’s 

botanical biodiversity by initiatives 

such as operating the Tasmanian Seed 

Conservation Centre, undertaking research 

aimed at ensuring the survival of rare, 

threatened and endangered species, and by 

managing and maintaining Tasmania’s 

ex situ botanical collections. 

The RTBG is a signatory to the Botanic 

Gardens Conservation International 

(BGCI) 2010 Targets for Botanic Gardens 

Agenda, which contributes to the Global 

Strategy for Plant Conservation (GSPC).

The Gardens remain committed to 

achieving environmental sustainability 

in all aspects of its operations. 

Our Shared Priorities
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Ongoing implementation of the RTBG’s 
Strategic Master Plan including:

The completion and opening of the 

Tasmanian Community Food Garden, the 

redevelopment of this precinct is a key 

focus of stage one of the RTBG’s Strategic 

Plan. The new garden was opened at the 

Harvest Festival by our Minister, Matthew 

Groom and our highly valued supporter 

Peter Cundall. 

The Statewide reach and successful 

outcomes of our certificated and skills 

based horticultural education programs 

-with courses running in Smithton, historic 

Clarendon House (a unique course in 

partnership with the National Trust), 

Hobart, Launceston, the Derwent Valley 

and Huonville. The courses reached 142 

participants with a very low withdrawal 

rate and a high completion rate. 

The successful expansion of the Azorella 

macquariensis seed orchard on Macquarie 

Island from 9 plants to 54 plants. With 

considerable support from staff at the 

RTBG and on Macquarie Island the 

RTBG’s Horticultural Botanist ‘grew’ the 

Azorella collection into a seed orchard 

capable of delivering genetically viable, 

conservation sized collections of seed 

of this threatened plant. 

RTBG Seed Bank staff participated in 

two Bush Blitz Collection trips including 

one in collaboration with staff from the 

Australian National Botanic Gardens 

Seed Bank, Canberra. Bush Blitz brings 

together a team of scientist to undertake 

detailed site surveys. The Bush Blitz 

program is a partnership between the 

Australian Government, BHP Billiton 

Sustainable Communities and 

Earthwatch Australia.

The success of the 24 Carrot School 

Gardens program highlights the strengths 

and values of collaborative partnerships. 

The RTBG plays a key role as a member 

of the project’s steering committee and 

as the financial administrator. The project 

has successfully completed six new school 

food gardens and initiated complementary 

horticultural and healthy living programs.

Hosting the first overseas intern student 

to conduct research in the Tasmanian 

Seed Conservation Centre. Gennaro 

Scognamiglio came to us from Italy via 

Leiden University in the Netherlands. 

Gennaro’s work focused on the 

germination of Pomaderris.

The broad reach of our Arboricultural 

Consultancy Services across the State 

especially through survey work for 

the Department of Education and The 

Catholic Education Office. The team also 

reularly provide consultancy services 

for the Hobart, Kingborough and 

Sorrell Councils.

The successful ‘morphing’ of the RTBG’s 

late Summer / Autumn festival from the 

Treadlightly Sustainability Festival to the 

Harvest Festival. With its healthy living 

and food focus this event is now more 

closely aligned with the RTBG’s goals.

Another extremely successful Great 

Tomato Sale, this time preceded by a 

special ‘prelude’ sale. The sale gave 

patrons the opportunity to avoid the long 

queues on the Saturday with a $10.00 

donation to the RTBG. This sale is the 

outcome of many volunteer hours by the 

RTBG growing group and the Friends of 

the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens.

The completion of the temporary 

education rooms – a refit of the southern 

end of the Visitor Centre to house the 

RTBG’s Education programs pending the 

demolition of the Pod to make way for the 

new Living / Learning Centre. The new 

rooms have the potential to function as 

additional income generating meeting 

and small conference spaces. 

The Completion of Stage 1. of the Bridge 

to City Rehabilitation Project with a 

community planting day. This project, 

with partners: the Friends of the Royal 

Tasmanian Botanical Gardens, the Royal 

Tasmanian Botanical Gardens, Southern 

Coast Care Association Tasmania (SCAT) 

and the Hobart City Council (HCC) 

worked to: weed, remove rubbish, prepare 

and plant out a significant section of the 

Derwent foreshore between the Tasman 

Bridge and the city. 

Highlights of the Year
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The Royal Tasmanian Botanical 
Gardens’ organisational structure 
comprises four separate business units. 
The area of responsibility for each unit 
is detailed below. 

Collections & Research

The Unit is responsible for the 

management of all horticultural and 

botanical operations and associated 

programs and resources including 

the curation of plant collections and 

displays, plant production and related 

environmental programs. It encompasses: 

Gardens Operations

The Gardens Operations Unit is 

responsible for the horticultural 

management and curation of the plant 

collections, plant displays and nursery 

plant production. In addition, horticultural 

refurbishment including heritage 

landscapes comprising garden elements 

and lawns, waste management, asset 

maintenance and landscape services, 

as well as work place training and event 

support as incorporated within this unit.

Botanical Resources

Responsible for maintaining 

documentation contained in the plant 

collections database, site mapping, 

tagging and labelling collections, 

maintaining the ancillary library, 

herbarium and archival collections. In 

addition this unit undertakes plant-based 

research through grants, conservation 

of collections and the development and 

monitoring of plant health protocols.

Tasmanian Seed Conservation Centre 

(TSCC)

This major collaborative partnership 

aimed at safeguarding Tasmania’s 

botanical biodiversity is responsible for 

the operation of the Safe Seed facility 

including seed collection, processing 

and associated research functions.

Arbor Services

The Arboriculture unit is responsible 

for the curation, management and 

maintenance of the Gardens’ unique 

tree collection including the provision 

of commercial arbor services. 

Public Programs and Operations

This Unit is responsible for the 

coordination and definition of the cultural 

profile of the Gardens and ensures the 

quality of the Gardens’ contribution to 

public knowledge, understanding and 

appreciation of flora from Tasmania 

and other world regions. In addition it 

is responsible for the management and 

maintenance of all assets under the 

control of the RTBG. It encompasses:

Learning and Community Engagement

The Learning and Community 

Engagement Unit is responsible for the 

development and delivery of all school, 

vocational education and adult learning 

as well as community engagement and 

education programs offered by the RTBG.

Marketing and Events

The Marketing and Events Unit is 

responsible for the development and 

implementation of a marketing and 

communications program that aims 

to refocus the image of the RTBG and 

promote its use to a wider audience. 

The Unit is also responsible for event 

management, sponsorship, managing 

public relations for the RTBG, and 

the maintenance and development of 

the RTBG online presence including 

the RTBG website and various social 

networking sites. 

Interpretation Projects

Interpretation includes developing 

and presenting themes, stories and 

messages that underpin the RTBG’s 

programs to visitors and providing for 

the orientation and information needs of 

visitors including exhibitions and signage 

throughout the Gardens, as well as 

coordinating the Interpretive Guides.

Assets and Infrastructure

The role of this Unit is to manage and 

maintain assets and infrastructure 

under the control of the RTBG including 

all aspects of built cultural heritage, 

landscape construction, capital 

expenditure and asset maintenance, 

and associated project management. 

In addition the unit also coordinates and 

manages all security, event logistics and 

cleaning services for the RTBG.

Business Services

The Business Services Unit is responsible 

for providing financial management, 

human resources coordination and 

business administration including 

reception and booking services, 

venue hire, records management, 

and secretariat to the RTBG Board. 

In addition it encompasses the 

management of retail operations 

including merchandise development, 

provision of information to visitors, 

daily operations of the Visitor Centre, 

gallery bookings, school bookings, 

visitor statistics and feedback and 

all cash handling. 

Catering Services

This Unit encompasses all catering 

functions under the control of the 

RTBG including the Botanical Gardens 

Restaurant, Kiosk, function and event 

catering and training centre catering. 

Introduction to Each Business Unit
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Goal 1

To sustainably manage the core values of 

the RTBG as Tasmania’s botanical gardens

•	 Strategy	1.1:	To	ensure	the	RTBG	

is internationally recognised for its 

collections of southern hemisphere 

cool climate plants with a particular 

emphasis on Tasmania’s flora. 

•	 Strategy	1.2:	To	respect,	conserve 

and interpret the cultural values of 

the site. 

•	 Strategy	1.3:	To	support	and	be	

involved in world flora conservation 

programs.

•	 Strategy	1.4:	To	be	a	community	

leader in sustainable environmental 

programs. 

•	 Strategy	1.5:	To	engage	in	appropriate	

research related to the conservation 

of species of conservation significance 

from southern hemisphere cool 

climate areas with a particular 

emphasis on Tasmania’s Flora. 

Goal 2

To promote and manage the Gardens to 

ensure its users have the opportunity to 

attain a quality experience of the place 

and its value

•	 Strategy	2.1:	To	achieve	excellence	in	

horticultural and botanical education, 

training and extension programs. 

•	 Strategy	2.2:	To	communicate	the	

relevance, importance and history 

of the RTBG, its programs, people 

and context through meaningful and 

valued interpretation. 

•	 Strategy	2.3:	To	be	a	recognised	

deliverer of quality programs, 

products and services.

•	 Strategy	2.4:	To	position	the	RTBG	as	

one of the top Tasmanian Attractions 

in terms of number of visits and levels 

of awareness. 

•	 Strategy	2.5:	To	develop	the	built	

environment to facilitate the 

experience of the Gardens.

•	 Strategy	2.6:	To	maintain	the	built	

environment of the RTBG in a manner 

that addresses the requirements 

for basic function, safety and public 

amenity.

Goal 3

To ensure there is sufficient capacity 

to sustainably manage the RTBG

•	 Strategy	3.1:	To	ensure	that	the	

legislative requirements for the 

operations of the Gardens are 

effectively met.

•	 Strategy	3.2:	To	ensure	that	the	

funding available to the Gardens 

is adequate to realise its vision 

and mission.

•	 Strategy	3.3:	To	deliver	innovative,	

proactive and sustainable business 

practices to support and enhance 

RTBG programs. 

•	 Strategy	3.4:	To	provide	safe	

and enriching work and social 

environments for staff, stakeholders 

and visitors. 

Strategic Master Plan: Goals and Strategies 
The RTBG Strategic Master Plan 2009 identifies the three core goals of the RTBG as well as a range of strategies aimed at 
assisting in the achievement of these goals. 
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Goal 1
To sustainably manage the core values of the 
RTBG as Tasmania’s botanical garden.
Established in 1818, the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens is Australia’s 

second oldest Botanic Garden. The RTBG is distinguished by a number of 

unique collections and houses the largest collection of conifers in the southern 

hemisphere. The Tasmanian native collection is significant due to the unique 

nature of Tasmania’s flora with around 30% of species being endemic to the 

State. Complementing this is the worlds’ only Subantarctic Plant House 

which holds collections from Macquarie Island. 
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Strategy 1.1
Ensure the RTBG is recognised for its 
collections of southern hemisphere cool 
climate plants with an emphasis on 
Tasmania’s flora.

Collection Management- 
Arboriculture

The RTBG’s tree canopy is made up of a 

little fewer than 2000 specimens. Some 

have been around since the mid 1800’s 

and are among the oldest cultivated trees 

in Australia; RTBG is the second oldest 

Australian botanical garden. 

Most of RTBG’s mature trees are of 

northern hemisphere origin, with a 

substantial collection of oaks, elms, pines 

and temperate climate tolerant palms.

The Aboricultural team worked 

throughout the year to monitor and 

maintain the RTBG’s valuable collections 

of trees to the highest standard. 

The RTBG Arbor team are partially 

self funded through consultancies 

and external arbor work. In total, the 

Arboriculture team serviced 232 requests 

for aboricultural advice or technical 

assistance. A major focus of the Arbor 

team is with local government tree 

managers at many of the regional councils. 

Major projects for the year included tree 

risk assessment for private and public 

schools state wide and the ongoing elm 

leaf beetle management services over 

the spring and summer period.

Larger consultancy projects this year 

included:

•	 A	tree	survey	for	the	Salmon 

Ponds site

•	 Tree	surveys	for	Catholic	Schools	in	

Clarendonvale and Bellerive, and

•	 A	tree	survey	for	Margate	Primary	

school.

Consultation with the Department of 

Education resulted in direct referral of 

enquiries from individual schools and lead 

to trees being surveyed at 17 schools

The Arbor Team also undertook tree 

inspections for DIER along sections of 

major highways in southern Tasmania 

and individual trees in Gordon and tree 

inspections for WorkSafe Tasmania, 

Rosny Park.

Living Collections Management 

Display Development

Tasmanian Community Food Garden

The Tasmanian Community Food 

Garden was an important focus of the 

horticulture teams in the latter part of 

2013. While the hard structure of the 

garden was developed by RTBG staff and 

specialist contractors the soft landscape 

was entirely the responsibility of the 

RTBG staff. 

A core group of Gardens Operations staff 

managed the task of planning the new 

plantings to bring the garden to life. 

Much of the plant material planted 

in the TCFG is made up of original 

specimens from Pete’s Patch. The RTBG’s 

horticultural team were able to save 

many of the mature Apple trees originally 

planted and trained by Peter using the 

traditional espalier method, as well as 

some more recently planted Olive trees. 

The plants were lifted during the winter 

of 2012 and housed in a makeshift 

nursery on site, before being transplanted 

into new locations within the food garden. 

Much of the original economic plants 

border, running along the Eardley-Wilmot 

Wall, consisting of mixed Citrus and 

perennial food plants has been retained 

and added to with a mass planting of 

Camellia sinensis (the tea plant). 

This planting was made possible by the 

generous donation of vegetative material 

from Dr.Gordon Brown, a local grower 

and producer of green and black tea. 

The design and installation of automatic 

irrigation systems, laying of instant turf, 

and all associated planting was carried 

out over a period of weeks utilising RTBG 

staff and our full time and part time 

horticulture students. 

The garden is still in its infancy but is 

already proving to be hugely popular with 

local and interstate visitors, community 

groups and school groups that visit 

on a regular basis.

Succulent plants display

Many specimens from the succulent 

plant collection growing in front of the 

cactus house were removed during the 

TCFG construction and relocated to a 

new display garden in late 2013.  

The new garden will display and 

interpret this unique group of plants 

and the dry climate adaptive qualities 

that they exhibit. 

Cactus Collection.

The plants from within the cactus house 

were also removed, they are temporarily 

on display in the raised easy access 

garden beds. This ‘display case’ style 

planting is proving popular with visitors, 

especially the younger visitors and points 

towards some novel approaches when 

planning the new site for this collection. 

Goal 1
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The French Memorial Garden

Stage II development of the French 

Explorers Collection has been completed. 

The completion of this second and final 

stage culminates a total renovation of the 

area surrounding the iconic Stephen Walker 

sculpture. The expanded plantings provide 

increased scope for representation of the 

plant species collected by the early French 

botanists. Along with the work to the 

eastern end of the display, a massed planting 

of Correa alba was used to soften the 

entrance to the garden at the western end. 

Palm collection

The RTBG’s palm collection has been 

greatly enhanced over the last year with 

new plantings of specimens that were 

kindly donated by two local palm collectors. 

The collection has been bolstered with 

the addition of more Australian species, 

along with specimens of the most southern 

growing and most northern growing 

species of palm in the world. 

Main lawn

Two major improvement projects were 

undertaken on the main lawn during the 

early part of 2014. 

A substantial drainage system was installed 

at the northern end of the lawn, above 

the Churchill Oak, in order to improve the 

lawns drainage efficiency during periods of 

heavy rainfall and consequently to improve 

the health of the Churchill Oak .

In the centre of the main lawn the former 

Carousel site was rehabilitated to create 

a new level performance and event space. 

The incline surrounding this area was 

reshaped in order to maximize the sites 

capacity to host up to 2,000 patrons with 

clear sight lines to the performance space. 

The site now has the potential to function 

as a concert site for smaller (1,500 to 

2,000 patrons) concerts and events. It will 

also be a useful performance space for 

RTBG run events. 

Nursery

The RTBG Nursery was contracted to 

accommodate the establishment of an 

artwork by Ms Julie Payne entitled 

‘Mr Peacocks Garden’ exhibited at Kelly’s 

Garden in Salamanca. Ms Payne utilises 

living text to tell stories of place. Ms Payne 

kindly donated funds to purchase some 

tuberous Begonia varieties for the 

RTBG Conservatory.

The nursery donated its services to grow 

replacement plants of Pinus halepensis for 

the Australian War Graves Commission. 

Approval was given to act as a Tasmanian 

Seed Registered Importer. This will allow 

small quantity seed orders to be assessed 

on site by RTBG staff for any pest / disease 

issues, thereby removing the need to have 

this process carried out by Quarantine Tas.

Threatened Plant Species Display

The theme of the 2013 Threatened 

Species Day was “Size Matters” and 

was focused on the smaller threatened 

species in the State. A display highlighting 

this was presented to the public in the 

RTBG Visitor’s Centre foyer, highlighting 

the RTBG’s role in the conservation of 

threatened plants in Tasmania and how 

the general public could assist.

Estate Team

The Estate Team assisted by Corrective 

Services inmates work to ensure the 

gardens is maintained to the highest 

standards. The Estate Team has 

responsibility for:

•	 The	RTBG’s	Domain	highway	edge 

and Lower Domain Road edges 

including weeding, slashing and 

regular rubbish patrols. 

•	 Programmed	management	of	the	

Gardens Foreshore and Pavilion 

Point sites, including the cultivation of 

material for the future plant out 

of Bursaria spinosa.

•	 Assistance	in	relation	to	the	cleanup	

work on the Bridge to Slipyard 

rehabilitation project.

The Team Leader – Estate successfully 

negotiated to increase the potential 

total number of inmates up to 7 from the 

previous 5. This allows for two inmates 

to be regularly placed in the Asset 

Maintenance area.

Five additional staff were trained to 

supervise inmates in the absence of the 

Team Leader – Estate, this provides the 

capacity to cover rostered days off, annual 

leave and specific projects. 

Consultancy

RTBG Horticultural Staff selectively 

undertake a range of external consultancy 

projects, including: 

Baha’i Centre

RTBG staff continued their work at the 

Baha’i Centre of Learning with a focus of 

their work being on the central atrium 

within the café. The planting, featuring 

a Tasmanian Huon Pine Lagarostrobus 

franklinii under planted with several native 

fern species with the aim of creating a feel 

reminiscent of Tasmania’s cool temperate 

rainforest.

Members of staff also conducted a detailed 

plant survey across the Baha’i Centre site 

to gather information required for Green 

Building Council (GBCA) of Australia 

round 2 Green Star rating submission. 

In accordance with the centre’s eco-

friendly and sustainable design ethos the 

ultimate aim is to ensure that plantings 

comprise only those species that occur 

naturally in Tasmania’s south-east 

bioregion.
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Case Study 1:

St Lukes Cemetery
In 2007, in accordance with provisions and conditions laid out in a 20 year vegetation management 
agreement, the RTBG were employed by The Central Highlands Council as consultants to help ensure 
the long term survival of a rare daisy called Leptorhynchos elongatus (Lanky Buttons). Lanky Buttons is 
found within a small remnant patch of native grassland located in the oldest part of St Lukes Cemetery in 
the midlands township of Bothwell. The cemetery provides a refuge for threatened species because unlike 
adjacent farmland was never subject to the devastating impact that conventional farming practices have on 
native vegetation. Our role as consultant has been to conduct annual monitoring and provide advice on how 
best to manage the natural values of the site. Monitoring is an essential threatened species management 
action that provides land managers with important information such as whether a population of threatened 
plants is stable, increasing or decreasing and if weeds are becoming a problem and need to be controlled.

Prior to the institution of recommended management practices the number of Leptorhynchos elongatus 
individuals was known to have been around 200. Over a seven year period our monitoring work has revealed 
a staggering increase with a total of over 2200 plants counted during October 2013. This dramatic increase 
is attributable to the institution of a no mow period from September 1st to January 1st that has enabled 
plants to grow, flower and set seed. So far alteration to the mowing regime has been the only action necessary 
to ensure natural recruitment and subsequent dramatic increase in Lanky Button numbers. Implementation 
of other management actions such as weed control may be required if future monitoring picks up significant 
change in vegetation composition and structure.

The success of any plant conservation project is usually reliant upon input from a number of organisations 
and individuals. At St Lukes Cemetery we have been working closely with the Central Highlands Council 
from advising management on monitoring outcomes to making recommendations on how to best maintain the 
site. Prior to our involvement Greening Australia played a key role through conducting field information days 
to inform locals, erecting interpretive signage and preparing maintenance recommendations for Council.

Our involvement in helping to conserve and enhance the cemetery’s important natural values comes to an end 
this year and we are confident that under the excellent custodianship of the Central Highlands Council the 
future of Lanky Buttons and other threatened species in the cemetery is assured for many years to come.
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Vertical garden at the Mercury

The successful installation of a vertical 

garden within the office space of the 

Mercury Newspaper was carried out 

during December 2013. The planning 

and design of the project was undertaken 

by RTBG Horticulture and Education 

staff, while the planting and installation 

involved RTBG Horticulture students 

from both full time and part time courses.

New Railway Crossing to the 

RTBG Foreshore

RTBG worked closely with Hobart City 

Council during the installation of a new 

pedestrian crossing over the train line 

to link the walking path from Cornelian 

Bay to the Intercity Cycle Way below the 

lower car park of the gardens. Removal 

of vegetation growing close to the track 

needed to be reduced by RTBG staff 

in order to improve the sight lines for 

train operations. A replanting of local 

native species took place following the 

completion of works.

Supporting the Tasmanian Seed 

Conservation Centre 

Members of the horticulture teams 

continue to provide support to the 

Tasmanian Seed Conservation Centre 

through regular involvement in seed 

collection trips throughout the state. 

Quarantine Accreditation

The RTBG Nursery continues to assess 

small quantities of seed following 

approval from Quarantine Tasmania to act 

as a Tasmanian Seed Registered Importer. 

Certificate in Horticulture

The Gardens Operations Group 

continued their support of the RTBG’s 

Horticultural training programs and 

contributed to the delivery of classroom 

sessions to the Certificate II and III 

students throughout the year. All RTBG 

horticulturists regularly act as mentors 

to horticulture students undertaking 

practical field work days.

Curation - Curator Tasmanian Flora

Existing collection enhancement/

development

Tasmanian Native Section 

- Banksia Grove 

A significant area of the northern end of 

the Tasmanian Native Section featuring 

coastal species has been re-worked to 

display a grove of Banksia serrata (Saw 

banksia) specimens. This impressive plant, 

listed as rare in the wild in Tasmania was 

one of the first and most iconic of the 

collections made by botanist Sir Joseph 

Banks. Saw banksia has outstanding 

display qualities and it is hoped that 

our plants will eventually develop the 

typical gnarled, warty, character-filled 

appearance of old specimens in the wild.

Extension of French Memorial 

Fountain plantings

The French Memorial Fountain Collection 

has been extended on the western side of 

the display with a planting of Correa alba 

specimens. The planting aims to create 

greater visual balance and definition to 

the main entry point into the collection.

External work

Tasmanian Baha’i Center of Learning

The process of re-working the plant 

layout around the centre has commenced 

with the establishment of new plantings in 

the central atrium. The planting, featuring 

a Tasmanian Huon Pine Lagarostrobus 

franklinii under planted with several 

native fern species, aims to create 

a feel reminiscent of Tasmania’s cool 

temperate rainforest.

RTBG staff conducted a detailed plant 

survey across the Bahai Center site to 

gather information required for Green 

Building Council (GBCA) of Australia 

round 2 green star rating submission. 

In accordance with the centres eco-friendly 

and sustainable design ethos the ultimate 

aim is to ensure that plantings comprise 

only those species that occur naturally in 

Tasmania’s south-east bioregion. 

Welling Consulting-Plant relocation advice

Provided Andrew Welling of Welling 

Consulting with advice on how to relocate 

several Scleranthus fasciculatus (Spreading 

knawel) specimens. Spreading knawel, 

listed as vulnerable under the Tasmanian 

Threatened Species Protection Act 1995, 

typically occurs in grassy habitats at a 

number of sites in Tasmania. Detailed 

relocation methodology was provided 

that will hopefully enable successful 

relocation of specimens from a new 

subdivision to a proposed reserve site 

nearby that contains plants of the 

same species. 

St Lukes Cemetery, Bothwell

Our work at the cemetery concludes 

this year following what has been a very 

successful collaborative conservation 

effort with The Municipality of The 

Central Highlands Council. Our main 

objective at the outset was to recover and 

increase the population of the rare daisy, 

Leptorhynchos elongatus (Lanky buttons) 

through provision of maintenance advice 

and monitoring. Results speak volumes, 

and clearly the increase in Lanky button 

numbers from 200 in 2005 to in excess 

of 2200 individuals in 2013 justifies the 

efforts of all involved. 

Technical advice

Leonard Wall Street Reserve 

- Landscaping advice

Under our MOU agreement with Hobart 

City Council RTBG staff provided 

preliminary technical advice to assist 

in reviewing the existing design of the 

native display garden at the Leonard 

Wall Street Reserve in West Hobart. 

The RTBG will progress ideas with 

the Hobart City Council’s Vegetation 

Management Supervisor, Bushland 

operations and the local community 

to determine future plant selection 

and site maintenance requirements.

Goal 1
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Berne Botanical Garden-Cultivation advice

Provided Adrian Möehl (member of 

research staff at Berne Botanical Garden 

in Switzerland) with technical advice on 

the cultivation of the Tasmanian endemic, 

Isophysis tasmanica. Adrian is keen to 

acquire this difficult to grow species to 

complete Berne’s Iridaceae collection. 

National Gallery of Australia-Plant 

identification

Assisted Dr Anna Gray (Head of 

Australian Art & Senior Curator of 

Australian Paintings & Sculpture before 

1920 at the National Gallery of Australia) 

to identify a number of Tasmanian plant 

species depicted in the 1840 painting 

An infant of Van Diemen’s Land by English 

artist Benjamin Duterrau. An appreciative 

Dr Gray kindly sent the gardens a copy of 

the autumn 2014 edition of the National 

Gallery of Australia publication ART ON 

VIEW which featured an article about 

the painting.

Curator Conservation Collections and 

Subantarctic Flora

Key projects for the year included:

Azorella macquariensis Dieback Program

The RTBG’s “Project to establish an 

Azorella macquariensis ex-situ seedbank 

orchard on Wireless Hill, Macquarie 

Island” successfully received a placement 

on the Station at Macquarie Island for 5 

weeks from Oct-Nov 2013. The RTBG 

Horticultural Botanist, Ms Natalie Tapson, 

following survival training and medical 

evaluation, departed Hobart on the 25th 

Oct. The RTBG had originally requested 

15 weeks to complete this project, so it 

was only due to the extremely generous 

support and assistance of staff from the 

Tasmanian Parks and Wildlife Service 

Rangers (TASPWS), the Macquarie 

Island Pest Eradication Team (MIPEP), 

the Bureau of Meteorology (BOM) and 

the Australian Antarctic Division (AAD), 

that Natalie was able to complete the 

expansion of the conservation collection 

and seed orchard from 9 to 54 plants. 

The plants were collected from across 

Macquarie Island to capture a broad cross 

section of genetically distinct individuals. 

The completion of this project was a 

remarkable achievement in such a short 

period of time, and would not have been 

possible without Natalie’s determination, 

much hard work and the generous 

assistance of so many on the Island. 

The RTBG worked closely with and 

received in-kind support from the 

Biodiversity Conservation Branch (BCB) 

of the Department of Primary Industry, 

Water and Environment, TASPWS and 

the AAD to see the project through from 

initiation to completion. The plants will 

continue to be monitored remotely via 

photographs sent by TASPWS Rangers 

on the Island with the hope that seed may 

be harvested from them in the coming 

years. Applications are currently being 

submitted to the AAD to continue the 

logistical support of the project over the 

next 3 years.

All final reports to these funding agencies 

have now been completed and the RTBG 

is very grateful to all the individuals, 

the Mohamed bin Zayed Species 

Conservation Fund and the Foundation 

for National Parks and Wildlife for 

supporting this important project.

Since her return, Natalie Tapson has 

conducted 2 presentations on the 

project to RTBG Staff and has been 

accepted to present an abstract at the 

10th Australiasian Plant Conservation 

Conference in November 2014. The 

project has been promoted via the 

RTBG/RTBG Friends facebook pages, 

RTBG website, RTBG Flickr site, 

interpretation in Subantarctic House, 

and articles have been written for the 

ANPC Plant Conservation Journal, 

Friends of the RTBG ‘Fagus’ magazine 

and BGANZ ‘Botanic Garden’ magazine. 

Further information about this project 

can be found at – www.rtbg.tas.gov.au/

conservation

Goal 1

Natalie Tapson collecting Azorella on Mt 

Law, Image: N. Tapson

Panorama of Wireless Hill, Macquarie Island showing Azorella macquariensis conservation 

collection on the left. Image: C.Howard (TASPWS)
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The 10th Australasian Plant 

Conservation Conference (APCC10)

The RTBG and Australian Network 

for Plant Conservation (ANPC) will be 

co-hosting the APCC10 Conference in 

November 2014. The APCC is held every 

second year and provides a major forum 

for conservation practitioners, community 

members and the scientific community 

to interact at a practical level. The 1st 

ANPC National Conference, Cultivating 

Conservation, was held at the University 

of Tasmania in 1993 as part of the RTBG’s 

175th anniversary celebrations, and it is 

pleasing to see this conference return to 

Tasmania 21 years later. 

Mark Fountain, Natalie Tapson, 

James Wood and Lorraine Perrins are 

participating on the APCC10 Organising 

Committee and a number of other 

RTBG staff, namely, Megan Marrison, 

Chris Lang, David Marrison, Anne 

Griffin and Margot White are involved 

in conference logistics. The theme of 

this years’ conference is “Sustaining Plant 

Diversity – Adapting to a Changing World”. 

The RTBG has been extremely fortunate 

that long-term Seed Bank Volunteer, 

Mr Arin Dean offered his services to 

assist the sponsorship opportunities 

for the conference. To date numerous 

Tasmanian businesses have offered to 

support the conference and the RTBG 

and ANPC is committed to promoting 

Tasmanian businesses and initiatives to 

this national audience. More information 

can be found at - www.anbg.gov.au/anpc/

conferences/2014/

The RTBG Subantarctic Collections 

An overview of the Conservation and 

Subantarctic Collections programs at the 

RTBG was provided at an induction for 

Friends of the Gardens Tour Guides.

Subantarctic plant flower samples were 

provided to Assoc. Prof. Adrian Dyer, 

RMIT University, for an ARC research 

project investigating plant-pollinator 

interactions and the potential effects 

of climate change.

Seed Bank Orchard Activity

The RTBG Nursery has developed 39 

seed orchards since the RTBG Seedbank 

commenced in 2006, 70% of which have 

consisted of threatened Tasmanian flora. 

20 seed orchards have been completed 

to date, 2 failed due to disease outbreak, 

One was decommissioned due to a good 

seed collection in the wild and 16 remain 

in production.

One seed orchard was completed 

this year with the following result – 

Scaevola albida – 9,600 seeds harvested, 

Additionally 2 new seed orchards were 

commenced, Milligania johnstonii and 

Xerochrysum collierianum. 

Aquisitions 

There were 232 acquisitions from the 

period July 2013 to the end of June 2014. 

The RTBG also received a number of 

donations during this period -

•	 One	large	Persea americana by 

Mrs. Anne Tyson for the Tasmanian 

Community Food Garden.

•	 Seed	from	Begonia spp. donated by 

Ms Marilyn Watson from the Victorian 

Begonia Society, Matt Coombes, Marg 

Thiessen, Mike White, the Botanic 

Gardens Trust, Sydney, Margaret 

Chedra, and Dr Reka Morris.

•	 Donation	of	two	known	variety	

Camellia sinensis cuttings from Gordon 

Brown for the Tasmanian Community 

Food Garden

•	 Donations	of	Echeveria cultivars for 

the RTBG Succulent Collection via 

James Wood.

•	 Donation	of	Parajubaea torallyi 

(Bolivian mountain coconut) and 

Rhopalostylis sapida for the RTBG 

Palm Collection by Mr J Cruikshank 

and Mr T Donovan

•	 Donation	of	Wollemi nobilis by 

Ms Barbara Turner

Other

•	 The	RTBG	Nursery	donated	its	

services to grow replacement plants of 

Pinus halepensis for the Australian War 

Graves Commission. To date 17 plants 

have been donated.

•	 Plants	of	Scaevola albida and Grevillea 

australis from completed RTBG 

seed orchards were donated to the 

Tasmanian Bushland Garden 

at Buckland.

•	 Two	articles	published	in	the	

Australian Plant Conservation 

quarterly bulletin - Working Towards 

Securing Plant Biodiversity in 

Tasmania - L.Perrins and J. Wood; 

and, Conservation on a remote island 

– safeguarding the Macquarie Island 

cushion plant, Azorella macquariensis - 

L.Perrins and N.Tapson.

•	 Natalie	Tapson	was	interviewed	by	

the Weekend Australian Magazine for 

an article about the RTBG’s Lomatia 

tasmanica Program.

•	 The	RTBG	Nursery	was	contracted	to	

accommodate the establishment of an 

artwork by Ms Julie Payne entitled 

‘Mr Peacocks Garden’ exhibited at 

Kelly’s Garden in Salamanca. Ms Payne 

utilises living text to tell stories of 

place. Ms Payne kindly donated funds 

to purchase some tuberous Begonia 

varieties for the RTBG Conservatory.

Artist Ms Julie Payne trimming her living 

artwork at the RTBG Nursery.
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Strategy 1.2
Respect, Conserve and Interpret the 
Cultural Values of the Site

Ancillary Collections

Library

On the 12th June 2012 vandalism to the 

Garden’s Visitor’s Centre resulted in the 

flooding of the RTBG Library. Many of 

the irreplaceable books were sent to a 

special drying facility in Launceston for 

treatment. 90 books were sent to 

be freeze dried by taxidermist, Mr Gerald 

Schnitzhofer, at the Queen Victoria 

Museum and Art Gallery and these books 

were repatriated to the RTBG in Dec 

2013 after 12 months drying. 

A donation of copies of the Students Flora 

of Tasmania and Biology for Australian 

Students signed by the author Dr Winifred 

Curtis was donated to the Gardens by Ms 

Julie Pearson. A set of the Endemic Flora of 

Tasmania Volumes I-VI was donated to the 

library collection.

Image Collection

A collection of images, correspondence, 

catalogues and the King George Medal 

presented to Mr J Overall from the 

Darwin Nursery at Sulphur Creek dating 

from the early 20th century was donated 

to the Gardens by his daughter Jaan 

Enden. James Overall’s first nursery was 

established in Zeehan in 1892 and the 

Sulphur Creek Nursery was established 

in 1909.

RTBG Herbarium

The Hebarium has acted as a teaching 

instrument for Gardens Academy 

Certificate II undertaking the subject 

Collect, prepare and preserve specimens. 

Herbarium volunteer Francina Banks 

continues to add to the collection of 

in-ground specimens.

Strategy 1.3
Support and be involved in world flora 
conservation programs.

Tasmanian Seed Conservation 
Centre (TSCC)

Collection statistics for the TSCC 

to date (up to 30th June 2014)

1645 Collections totaling 48.1 million 

seeds of 1082 Taxa, 1044 Species, 

393 Genera from 112 Family

Including 467 Collections of Rare and 

Threatened plants totaling 10.1 million 

seeds from 282 Taxa

 So far the TSCC and its volunteer staff 

have undertaken 5857 germination tests, 

5360 of which have been successfully 

completed. Including tests on 958 

collections of rare and threatened plants, 

482 of which have successfully passed.

Quick Statistics for 2013 - 2014

97 collections were made (totaling 

4.4m seeds) of which 44 were rare and 

threatened plants (0.5m seeds). 

122 collections are being germination 

tested comprising 759 tests in total. 

239 tests were completed by June 2014. 

Of the 122 collections, 14 have so far 

passed at least one test.

Collecting Program

This year’s collecting season was 

hampered by the unusually cold, 

wet spring, which initially curtailed 

the preliminary survey work but 

also impacted on subsequent fruit 

development. Due to this, repeat visits 

to a few sites were required as species 

matured far more slowly than expected. 

Some targeted species were missed this 

year due to timing conflicts, but despite 

this over the 67 days of field work this 

season 97 collections were made, 44 

of which were of Rare & Threatened 

flora. This result was largely due to 

the combined efforts of staff (who 

contributed 32 people days) and also our 

seed bank volunteers (who contributed 

47 people days in the field).

Grants and Externally Funded 
Programs

As well as funding from the ASBP’s 1000 

species project and some residual funds 

from last year’s CFOC Alpine/Conifer 

Project, the TSCC was also involved in 

two fully funded field trips with Bush 

Blitz, a first for the TSCC. The first bush 

blitz trip was in February to a group of 

private properties along the Marlborough 

Road, on the Central Plateau. 

The second trip was in March on Flinders 

Island. The BushBlitz program presented 

the Seedbank an opportunity to work 

alongside members of other institutions 

including TMAG and look at possible 

synergies that could be exploited. 

Most apparent was the quantity of insects 

often collected with seed and the possible 

value this has for entomologists.

The February Bush Blitz trip was 

also notable in that this was the first 

collaborative collecting trip with another 

seedbank program. Collecting was 

conducted with the Australian National 

Botanic Garden’s National Seed Bank and 

primarily targeted components of EPBC 

Act listed Alpine Sphagnum bogs and 

associated fens (ASBAF) community for 

conservation and research purposes.

Internship

In April this year the Seedbank hosted 

its first internship student. The student 

Gennaro Scognamiglio  is studying 

provenance effects on germination of 

Pomaderris species. This research work 

aims to lead to a better understanding 

as to how locations across the state 

impact on temperature preferences for 

germination. The ultimate aim of this work 

is to develop a model to better predict 

germination requirements and therefore 

streamline testing procedures and 

increase processing efficiency of future 

collections within the RTBG’s Seedbank.

Goal 1
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The Tasmanian Orchid 
Conservation Program

The Tasmanian Orchid Conservation 

Program has had another very successful 

year under the coordination and guidance 

of Drs Nigel Swarts and Magali Wright. 

Nigel Swarts provides approximately one 

day a week to the program, paid out of 

research funding during the spring field 

season and works as a volunteer for the 

remainder of the year. Magali Wright 

provides one day a fortnight to the 

program supported by her NRM South 

employer. Each Friday (with the exception 

to 8 weeks during the winter period) 

up to 3 volunteers from the Friends of 

the Gardens and Threatened Plants 

Tasmania provide 5 hours each to the 

ongoing works of the conservation and 

research program. The RTBG’s Curator, 

Threatened Plants Lorraine Perrins and 

other Horticulture staff have provide 

support towards the maintenance of 

seedlings produced by the program 

in the glasshouse.

The program has greatly appreciated 

the financial support of the RTBG and 

the Friends of the Gardens in their 

generous provision of a transportable 

site office. This has been turned into a 

laboratory and with donations of laminar 

flow cabinets and other equipment, 

the program now has a well-established 

research facility. The program is currently 

seeking funds to purchase two dissecting 

microscopes and an incubator to 

complete the facility. 

Works completed towards the program 

include the isolation and culture of 

mycorrhizal fungi from key Tasmanian 

terrestrial orchids. Volunteers have been 

well trained in these techniques and are 

now self-sufficient in media preparation, 

isolation and culture methods and sterile 

technique in a laminar flow cabinet. 

Cultures are prepared for long-term 

storage and DNA extraction towards 

the Australian Orchid Foundation 

and Herman Slade Foundation grants. 

Additionally, volunteers have completed 

in vitro germination trials and successfully 

transferred germinated seedlings from 

the laboratory to the glasshouse. The 

volunteers are involved in the ongoing 

survival and growth monitoring of 

the seedlings. The Tasmanian Orchid 

Conservation Program aims to have 

flowering plants ready for display in the 

conservatory by next season.

Outputs for the 2014/15 financial 

year include:

•	 NRM	South	continued	financial	

support of $5000 for consumables 

for the program

•	 Signed	MOU	between	the	RTBG,	

Friends of the Gardens, NRM South, 

NRM North and NRM Cradle Coast 

to assist with future ex situ orchid 

conservation with the provision of 

approximately $10,000 per year 

for the next three years.

•	 $1500	in	support	of	the	orchid	

laboratory from the Tasmanian 

Orchid Society

•	 Continued	training	of	volunteers	in 

ex situ orchid conservation methods.

•	 Seed	collection	from	over	25	orchid	

species

•	 Mycorrhizal	isolation	and	culture	from	

over 40 orchid species

•	 Germination	of	over	300	seedlings	

of the critically endangered orchids 

Caladenia saggicola and Caladenia 

caudata
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Azorella macquariensis

The Macquarie Cushion, Azorella 

macquariensis, has continued to decline 

on Macquarie Island since the species 

was listed as critically endangered in 

2012. Research into the cause of the 

dieback is on-going. The trial ex-situ 

collection of 9 plants, set up on the island 

in 2010, continue to grow successfully. 

Funding secured from the Mohamed 

bin Zayed Species Conservation Fund, 

the Foundation for National Parks and 

Wildlife and generous individual donors 

to expand this collection to a seed orchard 

of 54 plants, enabled RTBG Horticultural 

Botanist Ms Natalie Tapson to be 

seconded and facilitate the construction 

and completion of this project on 

Macquarie Island in November 2013. 

This technique of ex-situ conservation 

measures to secure a species within its 

environment on a subantarctic island 

is the first of its kind in the world.

Strategy 1.4
Be a community leader in sustainable 
environmental programs.

Bridge to Hobart City: Linking 
Place and People through Coastal 
Restoration

Community Planting Day, 

September 22, 2013

A community planting day was held 

on September 22, 2013 to mark the 

completion of the first stage of the 

restoration work carried out on the 

Derwent River foreshore between the 

Tasman Bridge and the slipyards.

The planting day was well attended by 

various members of the community 

including; FRTBG, Hobart City Council 

Bushcare group members, HCC staff, 

RTBG staff, students from RTBG 

certificate horticulture programs, 

students from The Friends’ school 

and members of the public.

In all, over 250 plants representing 

eight local species were planted in the 

zone closest to the slipyards. Many of 

the plants were propagated from seed 

collected in the area and the neighbouring 

Domain grasslands. 

The ongoing maintenance of the site will 

be shared by both RTBG and HCC staff.

Strategy 1.5
Engage in appropriate research related 
to plants of conservation significance 
from southern hemisphere cool climate 
areas with a particular emphasis on the 
Tasmanian Flora.

Research Projects

Lomatia tasmanica

Research with the University of Tasmania 

on the tissue culture of Lomatia tasmanica 

is still continuing. Another trial of 100 

explants were divided across four 

differing media in December 2013. Very 

few tubes were lost due to contamination 

and to date 8 explants have survived 

subculturing, currently the longest 

survival rate held since the project began.

Native Bee Project

The final report of the RTBG/UTAS 

research project, “Improving pollination 

success in threatened plant seed orchards 

by augmenting bee populations at the RTBG 

Nursery” was received by Ms Melanie 

Botrill, (funded by a generous bequest 

to the RTBG from Ms Amelie Rauner 

in 2013). The RTBG initiated some of 

the recommendations to set up artificial 

nests and attractant plant species around 

the Nursery to encourage native bee 

populations in this area. This initiative 

will continue to be monitored. 

Myrtle Rust Program

The Plant Breeding Institute at the 

University of Sydney is providing free 

testing for Tasmanian Myrtaceae species 

for susceptibility to Myrtle Rust Disease. 

The testing was organised via Tim 

Rudman at DPIPWE in early 2013, 

to inform a biosecurity response to 

this disease entering Tasmania. 

14 seed collections of Myrtaceae species 

were carried out opportunistically 

or voluntarily by RTBG and DPIPWE 

staff and 3 species that the Institute is 

currently having difficulty germinating 

will be grown at the RTBG Nursery and 

sent to the Institute as tube stock.

Orange Bellied Parrot Program

The TSCC and RTBG Nursery, along with 

the Understory Network, is supporting an 

investigative program to grow and assess 

a number of plant species as forage food 

for the breeding stock birds of the Orange 

Bellied Parrot Program. The Orange 

Bellied Parrot (Neophema chrysogaster) 

is one of only two species of parrot that 

migrate and only breeds in South-West 

Tasmania. There is estimated to be only 

50 birds left in the wild. 

Research Exchanges

Seed of Amborella trichopoda (kindly 

donated by the University of Tasmania) 

were sent to the University of Michigan 

(USA) and the Botanischer Garten der 

Universität Potsdam, (Germany) to 

assist with their research and teaching 

programs in Evolutionary Biology and 

Systematics. 

•	 Provided	Subantarctic	plant	flower	

samples to Assoc. Prof. Adrian Dyer, 

RMIT University, for an ARC research 

project investigating plant-pollinator 

interactions and potential effects of 

climate change.

•	 Leaf	samples	of	Libocedrus spp from 

the RTBG’s Gondwanan Collection 

were provided for DNA comparisons 

to Tokyo University.

Goal 1
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Goal 2
To promote and manage the Gardens to ensure its users have the opportunity 
to attain a quality experience of the place and its values.
The RTBG remains committed to horticultural and botanical excellence in its development 

and operations, and in the programs and services it provides. As part of this commitment, the 

RTBG offers a diverse range of education programs that will enrich and improve horticultural 

and botanical knowledge and the learning experience of visitors, in addition to providing 

professional and personal development opportunities for staff and others.

The RTBG is one of Tasmania’s leading vocational workplace providers in horticultural training. 

The development of partnerships with organisations around the state has enhanced and 

broadened the RTBG programs without placing unrealistic staffing demands on the RTBG.
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Strategy 2.1
Achieve excellence in horticultural 
and botanical education, training 
and extension programs.

Vocational Education

A focus on cultivating unique experiences 

for learning and skills development.

The Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens 

(RTBG), continues to be a leader in 

horticultural training through the RTBG’s 

popular nationally recognised training 

programs. These programs have been 

delivered over the last 4 years as part of a 

long-term partnership between the RTBG 

and the Recognised Training Organisation, 

GlobalNet Academy. 

In 2013 / 14 at any given time up to 100 

adult learners undertook professional 

horticulture training across the state 

each week in a number of horticulture 

programs including national horticulture 

certificates from 1 to 3, with the 

participation in these programs 

increasing each year. 

Students develop their horticultural 

skills through a blended learning model 

which encompasses both theory and 

equivalent hands on industry experience. 

The fulltime students spend at least half 

of their learning working side by side 

with professional horticulturists and 

industry mentors. 

Up to 50 % of our graduates end up in 

some form of horticultural employment 

post course.

Equity Training - Building Lives

The RTBG also run regular equity 

training opportunities for those who 

have difficulties accessing standard skills 

training programs. These include speciality 

programs to assist community members 

to gain meaningful skills and enable them 

to build self confidence for a future in the 

horticultural industry. 

These programs are normally run in 

partnership with local not for profit 

community organisations and groups. The 

aim is to provide training but to also factor 

in tangible outcomes within the delivery 

of the programs that inevitably contribute 

back to the partner’s strategic community 

goals such as community food production, 

food distribution and social well being. 

One excellent example delivered 

through the early part of 2014 was a 

community learning partnership with the 

Tasmanian Prison Service, SecondBite 

and the Risdon Christian Family Centre 

in the development of a vegetable 

field production area. The basis of this 

speciality program was to develop the 

horticultural skills of the participants while 

in turn producing fresh organic vegetables 

and herbs which could then be harvested, 

packaged and distributed by SecondBite 

to various sectors of the local community 

regarded as being of high risk of food 

insecurity.

Schools Programs

‘24 Carrot’ School Gardens Project

The RTBG is a significant partner with 

the Museum of Old and New Art, MONA 

and the initiative known as the 24 Carrot 

School Gardens Project. Along with the 

project partners the programs objective is 

to assist primary schools to develop their 

own food gardens and to integrate the 

teachings of fresh food production and 

use in creative and inspiring environments. 

The 24 Carrot Project Steering 

Committee have been supported in kind 

by well known designers and architects 

who are working with the schools to 

design unique and individual gardens for 

each school that are not only functionally 

productive but are also beautiful designs 

in their own right. 

Around 12 schools, an average of 3500 

students in the south of the state are 

currently associated in some form with 

the program. The RTBG will be working 

closely with the rest of the 24 Carrot team 

to develop and expand this important 

educational program into the future. 

The Living Learning Centre

On going work was undertaken to advance 

the development of the Living Learning 

Centre at the RTBG. The buildings main 

objective will be to house the learning 

and community team and their programs, 

including more than 400m2 of multiuse 

classrooms, meeting and breakout 

rooms, office space and commercial 

demonstration kitchen for community 

members. 

The centre will offer partner organisations 

and groups the opportunity to engage 

in multiuse education activities focusing 

around horticulture, food production, 

fresh food use and more. Early supporters 

include organisations like Jamie Oliver’s 

Ministry of Food Australia who have 

expressed an interest to partner with 

the delivery of their community food 

programs onsite. 

The centre is to be completed for use 

in 2015.

Try A Skill

The Manager Learning and Community 

Engagement and Nursery staff member, 

Megan Marrison, planned and held 

information sessions at the “Try a Skill” 

Expo, to support and promote the 

RTBG’s Education programs and the 

horticultural industry.

Goal 2
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Internal staff development

Adam Lancaster, Megan Marrison and 

David Marrison were delighted to jointly 

receive the inaugural Friends of the Royal 

Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Scholarship. 

Megan and David Marrison spent 2 

weeks working with the Gondwanan 

Collections at the Blue Mountains Botanic 

Gardens, Mt Tomah, NSW, to broaden 

their knowledge of the plant culture 

requirements and make connections 

with another organisation growing these 

diverse and interesting plant species.

Horticulturist Adam Lancaster is 

undertaking a Diploma of Project 

Management through the Tasmanian 

Training Consortium and the Institute 

of Project Management. Adam will be 

involved in an infrastructure restoration 

and development project at RTBG 

during the course of his studies 

Strategy 2.2
To communicate the relevance, 
importance and history of the RTBG, 
its programs, people and context through 
meaning ful and valued interpretation.

Threatened Plant Species Display

The theme of the 2013 threatened species 

day was “Size Matters” and focussed on 

the smaller threatened species in the 

State. An interpretive display highlighting 

this was presented to the public in the 

RTBG Visitor’s Centre foyer, highlighting 

the RTBG’s role in the conservation of 

threatened plants in Tasmania and how 

the general public could assist.

Strategy 2.3
To be a recognized deliverer of quality 
programs products and services.

Developing the potential for digital 
learning 

2013 /14 saw the beginnings of the 

Digital Garden project funded through a 

grant by Skills Tasmania and the Australian 

federal government which provided 

around $100,000 for the establishment 

of digital technologies in many parts of the 

RTBG. The technologies included a state 

of the art wireless local area network 

with connection to the high speed 

National Broad Band Network, 

with the addition of networked high 

definition cameras installed in select 

locations around the Gardens. In the near 

future these cameras will be accessible 

through special online portals located 

within the RTBG’s new web site, giving 

online visitors an incredible window into 

the RTBG throughout the year.  

One of these cameras is installed at 

the top of one of the tallest trees in the 

Gardens giving a unique bird’s eye view 

out across the RTBG and the Derwent 

River beyond. 

The wireless networks will provide 

opportunities for online delivery of 

learning that is not restricted to an 

internal environment or fixed desktop 

technology. Mobile devices are planned 

to provide visitors, staff and existing 

students with interpretation and learning 

opportunities at the press of a button 

and for the user they provide this 

learning flexibly and when they need it. 

The technology will provide a platform 

for creative delivery options including 

live online ‘in the field’ presentations 

from horticulturists and other trainers 

to schools and students nationally 

and internationally. Currently tagging 

technologies such as QR codes and 

virtual reality applications are gradually 

being incorporated within the RTBG’s 

community learning initiatives. 
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Case Study 2:

Productive Communities 
The Tasmanian Community Food Garden (TCFG) is a unique collaboration that aims 
to enhance the fabric of community interaction by demonstrating a model of successful 
community food production. It is a unique social and educational initiative that is 
challenging the traditional concepts of how public Botanical Gardens engage with 
their community.

The Garden is the product of a journey taken by the RTBG and a group of partners from 
many different walks of life, interested in how to improve food gardening and food security 
in Tasmania. The RTBG host the result, a garden that aims to reflect the Tasmanian 
community’s diverse food heritage in species, production and preparation.

The Garden was originally designed as a managed organic vegetable, herb and fruit 
production garden located within the former Pete’s patch area of the Royal Tasmanian 
Botanical Gardens. Its overall design was inspired by the venation in a dragonfly’s wing, 
a symbolic reference to the gardens focus on organic practices. 

Within the individual community plots the plantings are designed and maintained by the 
community representatives with direct support and mentorship from RTBG horticulturists. 
The overall process is coordinated and managed by the RTBG horticultural manager 
ensuring reliable and sustainable production, harvesting and distribution of produce back to 
communities in need.

Fundamental education sessions will be incorporated in to the gardens activities with live 
community horticulture and healthy, cost effective cooking programs scheduled for all ages 
and groups. These will also use produce grown directly from the garden.

Organisations and groups currently participating in the site include: ABLE Tasmania, 
SecondBite, Salvation Army, St Vincent de Paul, Red Cross, MONA 24 Carrot garden 
program, Sacred Heart College, Veterans and Peacekeepers Association, ABC Gardening 
Australia, Derwent Community House and the Migrant Resource Centre. 
A number of others have expressed an interest in future plots.
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The Plant Hunter Project

The last eighteen months saw the 

development of the Plant Hunter project 

(see case study), an initiative designed to 

encourage people in the community to 

engage with plant sciences. The innovative 

web site http://planthunter.com.au that 

was developed as part of the project 

includes the beginnings of what will 

become a significant part of RTBG online 

learning and interpretive experience. Its 

‘Virtual Garden’ experience based on the 

actual RTBG Native Tasmanian Garden is 

a taste of what will become a much larger 

virtual garden experience encompassing 

other virtual garden areas from around 

the RTBG site. The experience allows 

online vistors to walk through the garden 

on their computers or mobile devices 

from anywhere in the world. Hotspots 

within the experience allow the user to 

further access information, learning and 

interpretive materials. The Virtual Garden 

can also be used in situ on a mobile device 

while visiting the native garden to add an 

additional layer of information. 

Strategy 2.4
To position the RTBG as one of the top 
ten tourist attractions in terms of the 
number of visits and levels of awareness.

RTBG Events Program

Spring Community Festival

The Spring Community Festival has been 

a community institution for 28 years 

and continues to attract new visitors to 

the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens 

(RTBG). For the first time in the history 

of the event, an entire day was cancelled 

due to dangerous weather conditions. This 

decision was made in the interests of public 

safety. The second day of the festival went 

ahead as per usual and attracted just fewer 

than 9,000 visitors who took advantage of 

a beautiful spring day at the RTBG while 

experiencing the best Tasmania has to 

offer in food, wine and entertainment. As 

well as stunning floral displays, the festival 

featured an eclectic mix of music and 

entertainment representing Tasmania’s 

diverse culture. The highlight of this year’s 

festival was a sneak peek at the Tasmanian 

Community Food Garden, the RTBG’s 

newest development. Visitors were treated 

to a full days entertainment including a mix 

of bands, dancers, jugglers, magicians and 

many more performers.

The 2013 festival continued with the focus 

on increasing the number of community 

groups involved. The RTBG works closely 

with a number of community groups and 

assists to promote these organisations . 

Groups were given the chance to promote 

themselves and highlight their wonderful 

achievements.

As with all festivals at the Gardens, 

sustainability was a central feature 

of the festival with stall holders using 

biodegradable cutlery and crockery with 

the aim of producing compost not waste.

Festival goers are becoming increasingly 

aware and supportive of the efforts made 

to reduce, reuse and recycle at all festivals. 

As with the Harvest Festival, festival-

goers were also encouraged to use public 

transport to get a discounted entry.

The Spring Community Festival is well 

supported by the Friends of the Gardens 

who staff the entrances and undertake a 

range of other roles over the two days.

Large scale events such as the 2013 

Spring Community Festival are extremely 

expensive to produce and are only 

possible due to the valued partnerships 

with supporters like: Events Tasmania, 

PowerCom, Bendigo Bank, TasWater, 

Southern Waste Strategy Authority, The 

Mercury, Southern Cross and Signarama. 

TreadLightly Harvest Festival - Plant, Grow, 

Create, Eat, Live Local.

On a fine Tasmanian autumn day, the 

RTBG played host to 5,465 revellers at 

the TreadLightly Harvest Festival. Visitors 

were treated to talks, demonstrations, kids 

activities and games all delivered with a 

unique community focus. People travelled 

from around Tasmania and further afield 

to experience and engage with gardening, 

cooking and community gurus. 

Harvest Festival is the evolution of 

TreadLightly EnviroFest which has been 

running since 2008 attracting about 

3,000 – 4,000 people each year. While 

retaining the core values of environment 

and sustainable living for individuals within 

a community, Harvest Festival focused on 

growing your own and showcasing fresh 

food and healthy living. 

Harvest Festival also celebrated the official 

opening of the Tasmanian Community 

Food Garden. This concept garden is 

part veggie patch, part learning 

environment and part community garden. 

Based within the RTBG, the garden invites 

community groups to own a veggie patch 

and the chance to grow their own produce 

alongside the Garden’s professional 

horticulturalists. A finalist in the Jamie 

Oliver Popup Kitchen competition, this 

garden aims to engage and educate the 

community to grow their own produce 

from seed through food preparation and 

finally a wonderful meal on your plate. 

Features included:

•	 Official	opening	of	the	Tasmanian	

Community Food Garden

•	 Demonstrations	and	workshops	

covering planting, composting, 

water use, harvesting and even food 

preparation and service – the whole 

seed to plate experience

Goal 2
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•	 Celebrating	the	abundant	harvest	

Tasmania has to offer

•	 Special	guests	Peter	Cundall,	Tino	

Carnevale, Paul Healy and the RTBG’s 

own Marcus Ragus

•	 Minimising	your	impact	on	our	unique	

environment 

•	 Creating	welcoming	sustainable	

communities for our children 

•	 Supporting	sustainable	local	industry	

and products 

•	 Reminding	us	how	lucky	we	are	to	have	

such a beautiful environment to live in 

RTBG Cultural Program

A Midsummer Night’s Dream

Directions Theatre has been performing 

Shakespeare’s classics in the Gardens 

since 1998. Originally formed to provide 

an opportunity for local actors and theatre 

workers to produce quality productions, 

this annual event now attracts a loyal 

following. In 2014

Directions Theatre proudly produced  

“A Midsummer Night’s Dream”.

Tatton@RTBG / Ten Days on The Island

On display throughout the Gardens for 

a year, this exhibition finished in late 

March 2014. Tatton@RTBG was an 

exhibition of new sculptural works by the 

internationally recognised Tasmanian 

sculptor Marcus Tatton. The exhibition 

was curated and supported by Ten Days 

on the Island as an extension of their 

2013 program.

Consisting of eight works placed 

throughout the Gardens this exhibition is 

designed to be challenging while blending 

with the garden setting.

The Sculptor worked closely with 

Engineers and Gardens staff in particular 

the Arboricultural team to ensure that all 

the works were safe for the public and the 

RTBG living collections.

Robin Hood 

Big Monkey’s annual production in the 

Gardens regularly attracts in excess 

of 13,000 visitors to the Gardens. 

This year was no exception with the 

program divided between a fully booked 

schools program and a season for families 

and adults. Visitors were treated to the 

tale of the greedy Sheriff of Nottingham 

taking over the kingdom and his smelly 

henchman Sir Guy of Guisbourne is up to 

no good in the woods. Can Robin Hood 

save the day? Will Jill Scarlet and Friar 

Tuck be able to stop the sheriff’s sneaky 

plans? This play was adapted from the 

original work by Garden’s staff member 

Les Winspear.

Exit Left Productions

Exit Left Productions utilised the Gardens 

for two student productions. Performed 

in the Japanese Garden, students 

between grades 3-9 presented Mulan 

and Cinderella. 

Community Events

Teddy Bears Picnic

More than 2,000 people (and their bears) 

enjoyed the 2013 Teddy Bears Picnic. 

Organised by Play Group Tasmania South, 

this iconic event has been growing in 

popularity for more than 20 years.

The free event is part of Children’s 

Week celebrations and is a great way 

for the RTBG to connect with the 

next generations.

Goal 2
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Case Study 3:

Plant Hunter 
The need to value our plant communities and understand their vital significance to our health, 
wellbeing and basic survival is an issue of global relevance in a world where many people are 
divorced from the natural environment. Plant Hunter – Treasure Hunter is a collaborative 
project led by the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens (RTBG) to raise community awareness 
of the importance of plants and biodiversity based on the premise that the appeal of ‘treasure 
hunting’ could be applied to the world of plants.

Through www.planthunter.com.au Plant Hunters are encouraged to learn about the science 
of looking for and identifying plants: at the Gardens through interactive plant trails; online 
in a virtual garden; in their backyard, supported by an online community of interest, and 
in the wild by “hooking up” with Head Hunters when they go into some of the special wild 
Tasmanian and International habitats in search of rare and endangered plants. Plant Hunter 
has engaged a wide range of people at home, nationally and internationally, developing a life 
of its own, attracting new partners with their own ideas of where and how Plant Hunters might 
be encouraged to explore. QR coded Plant Hunter trails have caught the imagination of the 
wider community who want to incorporate them in their own developments, while the Virtual 
Garden entices individuals to explore the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens online and 
learn about the endemic flora of Tasmania from anywhere in the world!

The Virtual Garden takes you into the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens’  
Tasmanian collection

Plant Hunter: www.planthunter.com.au

Plant Hunter – Treasure Hunter: www.facebook.com/planthuntertreasurehunter 

Head Hunters: www.planthunter.com.au/wild-hunter

Plant Hunter trails: www.planthunter.com.au/hunter-trails

Virtual Garden: www.planthunter.com.au/teleportals
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Plant sale

The Friends of the Gardens plant sale 

has become so popular that in 2012, 

significant lines were forming more than 

an hour prior to the gates opening with 

some patrons waiting up to an hour before 

they were able to select from our rare 

and heritage tomatoes. In an effort to 

reduce the waiting times and allow more 

people an opportunity to choose from our 

tomatoes, the Gardens decided to host a 

prelude sale on the Thursday before the 

main plant sale. With our professional 

horticultural staff on hand to answer all 

the communities’ tomato questions, this 

event was open to everyone with a $10 

donation to the Gardens – tax deductible 

receipts provided. Both plant sales went 

well and lines were significantly reduced.

Nurturing Creativity in Children through Art 

This free event attracted 30+ children 

with families/care-givers this was a 

fantastic opportunity for children to 

experience the Gardens. Producing a 

‘Field of flowers’ from recycled materials. 

Participants included West Hobart 

Playgroup, Playgroup TAS and 

Lansdowne Crescent Kinder families.

Veterans Garden Workshop

Hosted by Peter Cundall at the RTBG 

and based on the concept that gardening 

can be therapeutic for Veterans, helping 

them to deal with illnesses and injuries 

such as post-traumatic stress disorder. 

The workshops covered how to set up and 

maintain your own garden, and how to set 

up a community garden as a larger project. 

The Gardens donated time, expertise, 

the venue and a number of plants for 

participants to take away. 

Charity Functions

Easter Egg Hunt and Family Picnic

In 2014, the Gardens hosted Tasmania’s 

biggest Easter Egg Hunt to raise money 

for the Royal Hobart Hospital Research 

Foundation. Attracting more than 4,000, 

this event focussed around chocolate 

and adventure. Made possible through 

the generous partnerships with some of 

Tasmania’s iconic brands, the egg hunt 

was open to children aged 3 – 12 years 

with families encouraged to bring a picnic. 

Reports indicate that the day raised 

more than $20,000 for the Royal Hobart 

Hospital Research Foundation.

Million Paws Walk

Held for the first time on site at the RTBG, 

this iconic RSPCA charity event attracted 

857 attendees and over 500 dogs to the 

Gardens. Held in the northern section this 

event raised much needed funds for the 

Tasmanian branch of the RSPCA. 

Cancer Council

Once again the Gardens supported 

several charities during the year hosting 

the Cancer Councils Australia’s Biggest 

Morning Tea fundraiser at the Botanical 

Gardens Restaurant.

Chronic fatigue awareness

Part of International Awareness Week for 

ME/CFS and Fibromyalgia, there were 

special events held around Australian 

major cities in support of awareness week. 

The Health Minister attended and spoke 

at this event that attracted more than 50 

people. 

Strategy 2.5
To develop the built environment to 
facilitate the experience of the Gardens

Superintendents Cottage Garden – 
Wall and Fence

The completion of a sandstone retaining 

wall and picket fence dividing the depot 

car park from the Superintendents 

Cottage Garden. Stage one of plans to 

develop and improve this landscape as 

both an entrance to the cottage and as a 

potential commercial private use space 

for weddings and other events. These high 

quality works were totally constructed by 

the RTBG’s Operations team.

Tasmanian Community Food Garden 
Construction

The completion of the Tasmanian 

Community Food Garden – This major 

project was project managed by and 

constructed with significant input from the 

RTBG’s Operations Team. 

Temporary Education Facilities

The Operations Team project managed 

the construction of temporary education 

facilities in the visitor centre’s exhibition 

space to provide a temporary base for 

the RTBG’s Education programs. 

Visitor Information Studio 

The Visitor Information Studio at the 

RTBG’s main gate was relocated, 

the move was driven by the need to 

provide safe access to a power source. 

The new position reopens the view into 

the Gardens from the main gate.

Digital Garden

Sub contractors completed the 

development of the infrastructure 

component of the ‘Digital Garden’ 

federally funded skills equipment project. 

This project will use wireless hotspot 

technology, web cams and interactive 

technologies for learning, interpretation 

and other activities. The RTBG is the first 

Botanical Garden in Australia to have this 

type of digital environment in place.

Goal 2
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Goal 3
To ensure there is sufficient capacity to sustainably manage the RTBG.
Innovation and sustainability are recognised by the RTBG as guiding principles 

for continued development and growth. To ensure the RTBG is able to meet its 

responsibilities into the future it is essential that a clear focus is maintained on issues 

such as the financial diversification, risk management, human resources development 

and technological capability to guarantee the long term sustainability of business 

operations at the RTBG.
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Strategy 3.1
Business Operations Plan update (a 
requirement of the Act)

RTBG Staff completed a comprehensive 

update and refocus of the RTBG’s 

Business Operations Plan for 2014/15. 

Living Collections 
Recommendations Report

RTBG Staff finalised the Living Collections 

Recommendations Report. The report 

will provide a basis for the on-going 

management of the RTBG’s living 

collections at a number of levels from large 

scale, whole of landscape planning and 

design to specific major projects such as a 

proposed immersive Tasmanian rainforest 

experience, through to recommendations 

that focus on horticultural detailing and 

interpretive opportunities.

Strategy 3.2
To ensure the funding available to the 
Gardens is adequate to realise its vision 
and mission. 

Future Funding

A report was prepared to give the 

RTBG direction in regard to seeking 

Bequests/Sponsorship and Philanthropic 

contributions. 

Commercial initiatives

The Arboriculture Consultancy

The Arboriculture Consultancy Service 

and other minor Horticultural consultancy 

services continued to expand this year 

generating $135,697. A major focus 

of the Arboriculture team is with local 

government tree managers at all the 

regional councils.

The Friends/RTBG Plant Sales

The Friends in conjunction with the 

RTBG held 2 major plant sales during 

the year – The Spring Plant Sale and 

the Harvest Festival Plant Sale raising a 

total of $35,000. The Spring Plant Sale 

focused again on heirloom tomatoes 

and this year to avoid the long queues, a 

Prelude sale was held on the Thursday 

before the main sale. This overcame the 

issue of long queues on the main sale day 

and proved very popular with the public 

with approximately 450 patrons taking 

advantage of the early sale. 

Botanical Gardens Restaurant

The RTBG Board and management 

reviewed the operation of the RTBG 

restaurant in response to a loss in the first 

half of the financial year. The Board and 

management investigated options fo  the 

future operation of the Restaurant and 

are in negotiations with a commercial 

operator. 

Botanical Shop

The Botanical Shop business continued to 

grow with an increase in both its turnover 

and profit with turnover increasing by 

13% and profit increasing by 63%.

This year the Shop continued to focus 

on retail merchandise reflecting the 

Gardens activities, collections and themes. 

Products were merchandised in thematic 

displays, thereby emphasising the RTBG’s 

core values. 

The range of branded merchandise was 

expanded to include:

•	 Tasmanian	made	wood	products	

featuring the Nothofagus gunnii and 

RTBG scenery utilising the well-known 

Tasmanian timbers.

•	 A	range	of	crested	souvenir	products.

Donations

2013/14 saw a significant increase 

in donations through the receipt of a 

bequest, a project donation towards 

the Living Learning Centre and 

through donations made to the joint 

RTBG/Mona 24 Carrot School Kitchen 

Gardens Project. 

The gold coin entry donations made 

by visitors at the entry gates continued 

at the same level as the previous year 

forming a significant part of the 

Gardens general donations. 

Grants and Sponsorship

The RTBG has been successful in 

securing significant grant and sponsorship 

for a variety of Learning & Community 

Engagement projects, botanical and 

horticultural research projects and events 

during the year. In total grants in excess 

of $222,500 were secured to assist in 

the development and delivery of a range 

of initiatives

Strategy 3.3
To deliver innovative, proactive and 
sustainable business practices to support 
and enhance RTBG programs

Financial Diversification

During the year the RTBG has continued 

to consolidate initiatives aimed at further 

enhancing commercial revenue streams 

including the development and marketing 

of a range of Gardens retail merchandise, 

expansion of commercial learning and 

outreach programs, development of 

additional function and event hire 

spaces, further development of botanical 

consultancy services, expansions of RTBG 

Plant Sales and enhanced services aimed 

at increasing visitor donation revenue. 

Strategy 3.4
To provide a safe and enriching work and 
social environment for staff stakeholders 
and visitors.

The Gardens play a vital role in the 

health and wellbeing of the community, 

providing a safe place of sanctuary and 

opportunities for visitors to relax and 

enjoy the natural environment. The RTBG 

recognises the values of its employees and 

is committed to providing a safe working 

Goal 3
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environment and a wide range of personal 

professional development opportunities 

that will benefit the individual and the 

future organisation. 

Workplace Health & Safety

The RTBG Workplace Health & Safety 

Committee met on a bi-monthly basis 

throughout the year and in the intervening 

months continued its rolling program of 

workplace area inspections.

The RTBG staff, student and volunteer 

induction kits were updated, including 

revised and additional WHS information.

Warden training was organised for new 

staff appointed to the role and first aid 

training was held for new staff and those 

staff whose qualification had expired. 

All staff were given the opportunity to 

receive the Departmental supplied Flu 

vaccinations.

As a result of incidents, RTBG policies 

and procedures have been reviewed 

and revised in relation to:

•	 Use	of	PPE;

•	 Herbicide	and	pesticide	spraying;

•	 Safety	and	maintenance	in	storerooms;	

•	 Digging	in	hard	soils;	and

•	 Manual	handling	and	repetitive 

action tasks

DPIPWE Work Health & Safety Committee

David Reid, Horticultural Coordinator, 

was appointed as the RTBG 

representative on the DPIPWE Work 

Health & Safety Committee, which was 

formed in November 2013.

Its role is to oversee and facilitate the 

development of up to date WHS systems 

across the department and ensure that 

there is full compliance with the latest 

WHS legislation, while addressing any 

gaps in existing systems. As with all 

WHS systems and protocols, the aim 

is to provide a safe and healthy work 

environment for all DPIPWE employees 

and associated personnel.

Friends of the Royal Tasmanian 
Botanical Gardens

During 2013-2014 the Friends of the 

Gardens continued in their tireless 

efforts to support the Gardens,  

providing volunteer time to a diverse 

range of projects.

This dedicated group of individuals assists 

the Gardens in proving a range of services 

that would otherwise not be possible. 

Each year the Friends raise funds for 

various projects, many of which would 

not be possible without this funding. 

Volunteerism

The work undertaken by the volunteers 

is invaluable to the Gardens and this 

year a total of over 9,000 hours were 

volunteered. 

There are currently ten volunteer 

streams operating at the RTBG – Visitor 

Information Studio, Easy Access Tours, 

Tour Guiding, Friends Cottage, Growing 

Group, Education Assistance, Heritage 

and Library, Tasmanian Seed Conservation 

Centre and Orchid Research Programs. 

Volunteers also provide assistance at the 

Spring Festival and the Harvest Festival. 

Volunteers

Volunteers contributed approximately 

2000 hours of volunteer time in the 

nursery between July 2013 and June 

2014. Our Nursery volunteers support 

three programs:

Begonia group

A small group of plant enthusiasts became 

the official Begonia group in early 2014. 

This group of volunteers is led by Megan 

Marrison, one of our horticulturists in the 

nursery. The aim of the group is to expand 

the previously small collection of species 

Begonia and create a group of plants that 
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will provide a display in the conservatory 

that highlights the great diversity of this 

genus through the selection of a wide 

range of species that will grow in the 

Hobart climate. A key figure in this group 

is Mr. Peter Sharpe whom we are very 

grateful to have on board. Peter was 

instrumental in establishing the Begonia 

Volunteer Growing Group in Sydney 

Botanic Gardens a number of years ago. 

Peter’s knowledge and enthusiasm for this 

plant group is extraordinary and we look 

forward to the results of this group’s work 

in the years ahead. 

Orchid group

This avid group of volunteers continued 

their great work with our ever expanding 

Orchid collection throughout the year. 

Every second Friday, members of the 

Tasmanian Orchid Society work with 

Margot White, nursery horticulturist, 

busily dividing and repotting plants, 

feeding and nurturing this wonderful 

collection of specimens as part of an 

ongoing process of maintenance and 

development. The Orchids have become 

a key feature plant in our conservatory 

displays, and we greatly appreciate the 

efforts of this group. 

Growing Group

Our Volunteer Growing Group in the 

nursery capped off another great year 

with a successful plant sale in September 

2013, supply of plants for the Harvest 

Festival Sale in April 2014, along with 

the ongoing production of plants that are 

sold from the plant trolley at the Visitor 

Centre. They are also involved in ongoing 

production and supply of vegetable 

seedlings for the Tasmanian Community 

Food Garden. They are a dynamic group 

and are involved in a variety of initiatives 

and tasks that contribute to their 

ongoing success.

Tree of Hope dedication ceremony – 

December 11, 2013 

The official dedication ceremony of the 

Tree of Hope sculpture took place on 

December 11, 2013, attended by the then 

Premier Lara Giddings.

The Tree of Hope memorial sculpture was 

commissioned by the State Government 

in dedication to people impacted by past 

adoption practices in Tasmania.

It is located on the small lawn area 

situated above the Lily pond.

Second Bite

Since the opening of the Tasmanian 

Community Food Garden, Second Bite has 

received close to 800kg of fresh produce 

from the garden. Volunteers from Second 

Bite have been heavily involved with the 

process of harvesting the produce directly 

from the garden, providing up to five 

volunteers on average per week 

to assist in the process. 

Professional Development

RTBG Staff engaged in a variety of 

professional development programs 

throughout the year, with delegates 

attending a number of conferences 

(including the Botanic Gardens Australia 

New Zealand / Botanic Gardens 

Conservation International Combined 

Conference in Dunedin NZ), workshops 

and professional development and 

compliance training. 

Trainees

The RTBG has a strong commitment 

towards providing quality training and 

employment to apprentices and trainees. 

During the financial year the RTBG was 

host business to 11 apprentices and 

trainees in the areas of Business Services, 

Retail, Hospitality and Horticulture. 

These apprentices and trainees contribute 

significantly towards achieving the RTBG’s 

core goals and values and bring valued 

diversity to the organisation. 

Horticultural Apprentices

RTBG continued its commitment to 

training of apprentices and trainees in 

the horticulture unit. Anna Johnstone 

successfully completed Certificate III 

Horticulture in October 2013. Following 

Anna’s departure, Heath Butler joined 

the horticulture team in November 2013, 

after undertaking an impressive work 

experience placement earlier in the year, 

followed by a successful application for 

the traineeship. 

Work Placements 

As part of the Tasmanian Government 

Work Placement Program for Immigrants 

and Refugees, RTBG hosted Klo Dot from 

Cambodia. Klo worked in the gardens for 

two weeks and was involved in a variety 

of tasks around the garden. 

RTBG also hosted students from the 

Friends’ School, Huonville High School 

and Rosny College during the year, as 

part of the commitment to school work 

experience programs.

Goal 3
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Visitor numbers analysis 2012/13 & 2013/14 

Visitor numbers reached 390,645 for 2013/2014, down about 
26,508 from the previous year’s total of 417,153. Further 
analysis of these numbers indicated that five months yielded a 
greater number of visitors than the corresponding months the 
previous year and only four months were significantly (>3,500) 
lower than the previous year. However, these four months produced 
significantly less visitors than the previous year resulting in a 
combined drop of 43,487. 

 13/14 12/13 Difference

JULY 19824 14513 5,311

AUG 14295 20639 -6,344

SEPT 25735 27724 -1,989

OCT 39126 48655 -9,529

NOV 32886 49923 -17,037

DEC 50064 38808 11,256

JAN 51034 61611 -10,577

FEB 36777 37431 -654

MAR 32358 31895 463

APR 38321 41620 -3,299

MAY 32360 29938 2,422

JUNE 17865 14396 3,469

Total 390645 417,153 -26,508

Below are some potential reasons why this has occurred: 

1) The Tasmanian Museum and Art Gallery (TMAG) was closed 

for 9 months of 2012 and reopened with much fanfare and 

funding in late March 2013. While TMAG closed, the RTBG 

experienced an increase in visitation as the other major free 

entry venue in Hobart. While the RTBG was experiencing a 

drop of 26,508 in the cooler spring months, TMAG reported 

record visitor numbers for the period: “The redevelopment will 

reaffirm TMAG as a national tourist destination, and will attract 

double present visitor numbers as Tasmanians and visitors 

alike enjoy the benefits of greater accessibility, new spaces and 

innovative programming”. The redevelopment of TMAG and the 

subsequent media profile possibly had a effect on RTBG visitor 

numbers during this period.

Comparison of periods within financial years

Winter/Spring RTBG # of visitors Difference

Aug-Nov 12/13 TMAG closed: 146,941

Aug-Nov 13/14 TMAG open: 112,042 -34,899 

Summer/Autumn

Dec-June 12/13 255,699

Dec-June 13/14 258,779 +3,080

2) 2013/2014 presented a number of extreme weather events 

far beyond normal expectations with adverse affects on RTBG 

visitation. RTBG visitation reduces to almost zero on days that 

experience rain and when the wind exceeds 50k/hr. The RTBG 

was closed four times in the 2013/2014 financial year due to 

dangerous wind conditions compared to once in the previous 

financial year. With the new wind emergency safety policy in 

place, the RTBG is closed in dangerous high wind conditions. 

There was a significant increase in the number of instances that 

meet these conditions and as a result the RTBG was closed 

more than previously. Notably, one of those days included the 

Saturday of the Spring Community Festival which was expected 

to attract 5,000- 7,000 visitors. 

 October 2013 Hobart experienced winds gusts over 50km/hr 

on 21 out of 31 days, more than twice the average for this time 

of year. 

 January 2014 experienced winds gusts over 50km/hr on 16 out 

of 31 days, significantly more than average for this time of year. 

 November 2013 experienced 18 rain days compared to an 

average of 12.7 over the last 33 years. 

 Conversely, there was an increase in the number of cruise ships 

visiting the state, which would have contributed increased 

tourist numbers this year. 

Botanical Shop numbers 

The Botanical shop welcomed 113,302 visitors for the financial 

2013/2014 year, the second highest number of visitors to the 

Botanical Shop since recording visitation commenced in 2007. 

Gate donation

$63,764 @ 16.1 cents per visitor is the highest rate of gate 

donation per visitor and the second highest total donation on 

record. The highest was 2012/2013 with $66,601 @ 15.31 cents 

per visitor. The drop of $2,837 can be explained by the following:

•	 We	hosted	26,508	less	visitors	this	financial	year.

•	 As	mentioned	previously,	the	Gardens	were	closed	for	four	days	

in 2013/2014 compared to one during 2012/2013. The period 

from August to November was notable for an above recent 

average number of rain days and critically for poor weather at 

the weekends, this would have had a significant effect on visitor 

numbers through the normally busy spring period.

Case Study
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Bequests

The Estate of the late Ruby Tung Yep $202,780 

Tree Sponsorship Program

Tree sponsorship continued enabling valuable ongoing work 

to prevent the spread of diseases and maintain the trees in the 

Gardens. Exclusive sponsorship of significant trees in the Gardens 

is acknowledged with a plaque on the tree detailing the name of the 

sponsor. 

The 2013-2014 Tree sponsors were:

S Cooper, G & I Fulton $1,300 Spotted Gum

Tony James & Stephanie 

Auchincloss
$1,000 Golden Elm

Diane Matthews $1,000 Southern Magnolia

L Ayers & A Geard on behalf 

of A & H McCarthy 
$ 500 Dawn Redwood

William Heap $250 Ash Tree 

Total $4,050

Mixed Border – Rose Sponsorship 

Annette Rhodes $400 ‘Paul Ricault’ & ‘ Cousin Essie’

C. Sweet & I. Chapman $250 ‘Rosa moyesii ‘Geranium’

Josephine Carter $250 ‘Complicata’

Jeanette McGaurr $250 ‘Irish Elegance’

Rodney Williams $250 ‘Californica’

Gillian Murray $250 ‘Rosa moyesii ‘Geranium’

John & Catherin Falke $200 ‘Baronne Prevost’

Friendship Force of Hobart $200 ‘Fantin Latour’

Honey Bacon $200 ‘Gruss An Aachen’

Total $2,250

General Sponsors

J & J Goldsmid $4,000 Memorial Seat

Lance Shutt $4,000 Memorial Seat

Andrew Knott $1,000 General Donation

Tasmanian Orchid Society $1,000 Conservatory Orchids

Kate Shaw $300 General Donation

National Council of Women $250 General Donation

Wendy Witham $250 General Donation

Julian Type $200 General Donation

Dale I Herbert $200 General Donation

M M Tarleton & K C Roberts $150 General Donation

Tony Kappler $100 General Donation

Eileen Harrison $100 General Donation

Ken Griffiths $100 General Donation

Julie Payne $100 Begonia Collection

George Lewin $60 General Donation

Total $11,810

Community Sponsorship & Grants

Able Australia $50,000
Feeding the Future 

Program 

Graeme Wood $40,000 Living Learning Centre

The Hermon Slade 

Foundation 
$28,600

Orchid Project 

– Dr Nigel Swarts 

Dept of Innovation, Industry, 

Science & Research
$27,456

Inspiring Australia Plant 

Hunter Project 

Australian Orchid Foundation $12,870
Orchid Research 

– Dr Nigel Swarts 

Hobart City Council $11,681 Annual Grant

Millennium Seedbank 

Partnership/ Aust Seedbank 

Partnership 

$11,220 Fieldwork Grant 

Department of Employment $11,000 Agrifoods Skills Project

Department of Employment $1,500
Employability Skills 

Project

BGANZ Grant $1,000

Total $195,327

MONA 24 Carrot School Kitchen Gardens Project

Department of Premier & Cabinet $153,456

Nekon Pty Ltd $105,000

The Graeme Wood Foundation $71,000

Lenna of Hobart $7,500

Total $336,956

Community Event Sponsorship

Spring Festival 2013

TasWater $6,600

PowerCom $4,400

Bendigo Bank $3,000

Southern Waster Strategy $1,100

Harvest Festival 2014 

TasWater $4,400

PowerCom $4,400

NRM South $2,500

Southern Waste Strategy $1,100

Total $27,500

Bequests and Sponsorship
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Our Supporters

The RTBG would like to acknowledge 
the generous assistance of government, 
industry and community partners who 
continue to provide invaluable financial 
and non-financial support to the Gardens.

Public Donations

The RTBG recognises the importance of 

access to the Gardens to the Tasmanian 

community. The degree of ongoing 

community support is evident in the level of 

donations made at various collection points 

located throughout the RTBG and through 

sponsorship programs for roses, memorial 

seats and trees.

Project Partnerships

In addition to the many anonymous public 

donors the RTBG also wishes to thank the 

following organisations and individuals for 

their support and collaboration with the 

following projects:

The Friends of the Royal Tasmanian 

Botanical Gardens continue to provide 

invaluable support through 2011-2012 in 

areas as diverse as volunteerism, library 

donations, and financial support. We 

gratefully acknowledge the generous 

support of this dedicated group of 

individuals. Of particular significance was 

the Friends’ continued financial support 

toward the completion of the former Fuchsia 

House and a very generous donation to 

support the purchase of a new cooling unit 

for the Subantarctic Plant House.

Royal Botanic Gardens Kew, UK, The 
Australian Seed Bank Partnership 
(ASBP) TMAG Herbarium, DPIPWE - 
Tasmanian Seed Conservation Centre 
(TSCC) Project

RTBG wishes to recognise and thank our 

Joint partners in this major conservation 

initiative. In particular we wish to recognise 

the contribution of RBG Kew, not just 

for the provision of initial funding for 

the project, but also for their ongoing 

invaluable technical and scientific 

support at every stage of the project. 

The development of the TSCC provides a 

critical “insurance policy” for Tasmanian 

flora into the future. The TSCC is especially 

grateful for the dedicated work of the 

seedbank volunteers.

The Native Orchid Conservation 
Program

This program is focused to conserving 

Tasmania’s rare and threatened orchids. 

Dr Nigel Swartz and Dr Magali Wright 

volunteer their time to co-manage the 

Orchid program through self generated 

grants and sponsorship with the support of 

a dedicated team of volunteers. The Native 

Orchid Conservation Program is grateful 

to the Friends of the Royal Tasmanian 

Botanical Gardens and Threatened Plants 

Tasmania for their ongoing support and to 

NRM South for sponsoring Magali’s time on 

this project.

Hobart City Council - Annual Grant 
Program

Hobart City Council continued to provide 

valuable support both financially and in kind 

to assist various RTBG projects by way of 

its annual grant and through the aegis of 

our shared MoU.

Department of Justice - Corrective 

Services Labour and Training Program

The long-standing Corrective Services 

labour and training partnership program 

between RTBG and the Department of 

Justice continued to provide valuable 

underpinning horticultural maintenance 

support work to the Gardens, while 

providing important educational and re-

socialisation opportunities for minimum 

security inmates.

Learning and Community 
Engagement Initiatives

The RTBG wishes to acknowledge the 

invaluable support of a diverse range of 

partners in developing and delivering 

a variety of learning and community 

engagement programs and projects 

throughout the year. These partners 

include; GlobalNet Academy, Grosvenor 

Consultants: School to Work Consultants 

to Independent Schools Tasmania, 

Salvation Army, SecondBite, ABLE 

Australia, Aboriginal Health Service, North 

Western Tasmania Tasmanian for Life 

Long Learning Inc., Tasmanian Association 

of Community Houses (TACH), Derwent 

Valley Community House, Smithton 

Community House, UTAs, Southern 

Coastcare Association Tasmania (SCAT), 

St Vincent de Paul, Red Cross, MONA 24 

Carrot Gardens, Rural Health Tasmania, 

Australian Veterans Association, Industry 

Link, Tasmanian Fire Service, Government 

House, Ministry of Food Australia, Urban 

Farming Tasmania, Coast Care, NRM South, 

Botanic Gardens Australia New Zealand 

(BGANZ), Tasmanian Community Fund, 

Bendigo Bank, and Tas Water.

Nursery Programs

Azorella macquariensis seed orchard. 

This project to develop an on-island 

conservation collection and seed orchard 

was supported through a partial grant 

from the Mohamed bin Zayed Species 

Conservation with additional support 

from the Foundation for National Parks 

and Wildlife. Assistance to complete the 

seed orchard of Azorella macquariensis 

was generously provided by staff from the 

Tasmanian Parks and Wildlife Service, the 

Macquarie Island Pest Eradication Team, 

staff from the Bureau of Meteorology 

and the Australian Antarctic Division on 

Macquarie Island. Ongoing support for 

this project is provided by the Australian 

Antarctic Division, Tasmanian Parks 

and Wildlife Service, and the Resource 

Management and Conservation division of 

DPIPWE. The RTBG is very grateful to all 

the above for their support of this program.

Lomatia tasmanica – The RTBG nursery’s 

work to conserve this rare and threatened 

species through on going tissue culture 

research is supported by the School of 

Biological Sciences at UTAS.

Marketing and Events

The Gardens’ diverse events program 

would not be possible without the 

generous support of our sponsors and 

partners. We gratefully acknowledge the 

assistance of Events Tasmania, NRM South, 

Southern Waste Strategy, Southern Water, 

PowerCom, Bendigo Bank, 936 ABC Radio, 

The Mercury, Southern Cross Television, 

Cascade, Hobart City Council, Rethink, 

Signarama, Dogs Home of Tasmania, 

Tasmanian Conservation Trust, Landcare 

Tasmania, Understorey Network, Blooming 

Tasmania, Red Cross Blood Service, 

Parkinson Tasmania, Playgroup Tasmania, 

and Disability Services Tasmania
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EXECUTIVE

Acting Director

Mark Fountain

BUSINESS 
SERVICES

Manager Business 

Services

Anne Suter

Business Services 

Trainees

Stephanie Stacey 

Christine Santi 

Jessica McCarthy

VISITOR SERVICES

Retail Shop Coordinator

Yvette Rance

Visitor Services 
Officer

Les Winspear 

Retail Shop Trainees

Tiffany Berry

CATERING AND 
RESTAURANT

Restaurant Supervisor

Vacant 

Assistant Supervisor

Samuel Van Den Berg

Cook

William Harrod

Food & Beverage 

Assistants 

Michelle Kastineris 

Thespian Ryanzke

Trainees

Steffi Bazan 

Tiffany Berry 

(Restaurant & Shop) 

Kimai Furness 

Daniel Smith

COLLECTIONS & 
RESEARCH

Horticultural 

Coordinator

David Reid

BOTANICAL ESTATE

Team Leaders

David Marrrison 

(Northern Team) 

Anne Griffin (Eastern 

Team) 

James Young (Estate)

Curators

Chris Lang 

Lorraine Perrins

Horticulturists

David Eaves 

Adam Lancaster  

Kenneth Littler 

Megan Marrison 

Jeremy Patterson 

Kathryn Saunders 

Margot White

Trainee Horticulturalists 

Patrick Fletcher 

Heath Butler

Estate Assistant 

Jeremy Robinson

ABORICULTURE 

Manager Arbor 

Jerry Romanski 

Co-ordinator Arbor

Alister Hodgman

BOTANICAL 
RESOURCES

Horticultural Botanist

Natalie Tapson

Archival Assistant

Michael Lowe

SEEDBANK

Seedbank Co-ordinator

James Wood

PROJECTS AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE

Deputy Director 

Brett Richardson

Maintenance 

Co-ordinator

Don Heazlewood

Utility Officer

Robert Miller

CLEANING 
SERVICES

Antony Moroni 

Stephen Ross

MARKETING & 
EVENTS 

Marketing & Events 

Officer

Ben Davidson

LEARNING & 
COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT

Manager Learning & 

Community Engagement

Marcus Ragus

Staff List as at 30 June 2014
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Acting Director – Mark Fountain

Presentations and Media

•	 A	number	of	presentations	to	special	interest	groups,	business	

and industry.

•	 Various	print,	TV	and	radio	interviews

Representation

•	 Council	of	Heads	of	Australian	Botanical	Gardens

•	 Botanic	Gardens	Australia	and	New	Zealand	Newsletter	-	

Editorial Committee

•	 Queens	Domain	Advisory	Committee	–	member

•	 Tasmanian	Flora	Advisory	Network	–	member

•	 Australian	Cultivar	Registration	Authority	–	member

•	 24	Carrot	Schools	Garden	Program	Steering	Committee	-	

member 

Curator Tasmanian Flora – Christopher Lang

Presentations and Media

•	 Presentation	to	the	Huon	Valley	Garden	Club-‘Selecting	

Tasmanian natives for the home garden’.

•	 Presented	a	session	as	part	of	the	Hobart	City	Council	Summer	

Bush Adventures Program-Stunning and Practical: Tasmanian 

Natives for Your Garden’.

Publications

•	 Prepared	a	profile	for	the	plant	hunter	website	detailing	the	

career path and responsibilities of the Curator Tasmanian 

Flora and our work assisting in the conservation of rare and 

threatened plant species at St Lukes Cemetery, Bothwell 

Learning and Community Engagement – Marcus Ragus

Presentations and Media

•	 Vet	Network	conference	Melbourne	2013	/	presented

•	 Presentation	BGCI	conference	Dunedin	NZ	October	2013	/	

presented

•	 Spring	Festival	2013

•	 Melbourne	International	Flower	and	Garden	Show	/	March	

2014

•	 Tread	lightly	2014

•	 Adelaide	Botanical	Gardens	March	/	April	2014	/	presentations	

to management and staff

Publications

•	 ‘The	Virtual	Garden:	‘Hot-Wiring’	the	Future	of	Botanic	

Gardens’ in Roots 11:1.The Botanic Gardens Conservation 

International (BGCI) Education review

Tasmanian Orchid Conservation Centre – Dr Nigel Swarts

Presentations and Media

•	 5th	International	Orchid	Conservation	Congress	in	Reunion	

Island

•	 Tasmanian	Orchid	Society	general	meeting

•	 Tasmanian	Field	Naturalists	general	meeting

•	 Continued	social	media	presence	on	Facebook	and	Twitter

Publications

Merritt, D. J., et al. (2014). “Ex Situ Conservation and 

Cryopreservation of Orchid Germplasm.” International Journal of 

Plant Sciences 175(1): 46-58.

Swarts, N.D., et al. (2014) Defining conservation units in a complex 

of morphologically similar, sexually deceptive, highly endangered 

orchids. Biol. Conserv. 174, 55-64

Presentations / Publication / Media / 
Representation
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Botanical Resources – Natalie Tapson

Presentations and Media

•	 Presented	a	talk	on	the	Azorella	seed	orchard	project	to	

expeditioners on Macquarie Island and to expeditioners and 

members of the public from the Akademic Shokalskiy on board 

the Aurora Australis. This talk was also given to staff and 

Friends of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens. 

•	 Interviewed	by	the	ABC	News	about	the	Macquarie	Island	

cushion, Azorella macquariensis.

•	 Interviewed	for	the	Weekend	Magazine	of	The	Australian	

newspaper and by ABC News about the RTBG’s program 

working with the critically endangered King’s Lomatia, 

Lomatia tasmanica.

•	 Presented	a	talk	to	the	Derwent	Valley	garden	Club	about	the	

history of the Gardens.

Publications

•	 Articles	on	the	Azorella	seed	orchard	project	were	written	

for the Australian Antarctic Division’s Macquarie Island This 

Week, The Friends of the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens 

magazine and a profile of the work on Macquarie Island was 

featured on the Plant Hunters website.

Representation

•	 Australian	Network	For	Plant	Conservation	Steering	

Committee – member.

Tasmanian Seed Conservation Centre – James Wood 

Presentations and Media

•	 In	July	last	year	while	on	leave	the	Seed	Bank	Manager	James	

Woods visited Kew Gardens’ Millennium Seed Bank and gave 

a presentation on the Tasmanian seed bank program reviewing 

the first eight years of work. James also spent several days 

consulting and assisting in database query development with 

staff at the Millennium Seed Bank to help resolve an ongoing 

data analysis issue.

•	 In	October	2013	the	Seed	Bank	Manager	attended	an	

Australian Seed Bank Partnership (ASBP) meeting in NSW 

and the official opening of the Royal Botanic Garden Sydney’s 

Australian PlantBank Facility.

Representation

•	 Australian	Seed	Bank	Partnership	–	Steering	Committee	

Member 

Presentations / Publication / Media / 
Representation
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the Year Ended 30 June 2014

 2014  2013 

 Note  $  $ 

REVENUES 

STATE GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Recurrent  2,704,000  2,460,000 

Other Grants - 24 Carrot School Gardens Project  153,456  - 

Skills Tasmania Living Learning Centre Project  -  351,000 

 2,857,456  2,811,000 

OTHER GRANTS

Hobart City Council  10,619  10,330 

Inspiring Australia Grant  24,960  - 

BGANZ Grant  1,000  - 

Azorella Research Project  -  12,403 

TCF - Tasmanian Community Food Garden  -  189,600 

CFC Alpine Project  -  50,000 

MSB Miena Cider Gum  -  8,000 

ASBP Phytopthora cinnamomi Project  -  15,000 

Hermon Slade Foundation Orchid Research  26,000  13,000 

Southern Water WaterSense Project  -  15,000 

IT Equipment Project  -  46,700 

DEEWR Employability Skills Project  1,500  6,000 

Dept Employment - Agrifood Skills Sets Project  2,500  - 

ASBP Field Work Grant  10,200  - 

AOF Orchid Project  11,700  - 

Feeding the Future  45,455  - 

 133,934  366,033 

RTBG GENERATED INCOME

Botanical Shop Sales  314,396  278,034 

Restaurant Sales  889,130  973,456 

Interest  81,202  66,435 

Reimbursements  28,088  29,805 

Theatre  7,968  12,212 

Donations/Sponsorship  89,076  128,172 

Project Donations & Bequests  242,780  - 

24 Carrot School Gardens Project Donations  191,000  - 

Mixed Border Project  2,586  2,052 

Venue Hire, Education, Site Hire, Minor Sales  121,896  113,351 

Spring Festival  34,715  56,094 

Sustainability Festival  24,540  25,231 

Consultancy Work  135,697  102,727 

Friends of The Gardens Sales & Reimbursements  45,009  55,181 

 2,208,083  1,842,750 

 TOTAL REVENUE  5,199,473  5,019,783

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. RTBG Annual Report 2014 49



Statement of Comprehensive Expenses 
for the Year Ended 30 June 2014

 2014  2013 

Note  $  $ 

EXPENSES

Botanical Shop Expenses & Cost of Goods Sold  281,759  257,891 

Restaurant Expenses & Cost of Goods Sold  981,845  964,971 

Collections & Research  1,499,702  1,432,141 

Public Programs & Operations  635,810  537,564 

Interpretation Expenses  43  257 

Marketing & Events  177,502  126,115 

Education  108,761  104,008 

Business Operations  609,668  754,800 

Depreciation  303,125  423,743 

Friends of the Gardens Reimbursements & Purchases  39,416  48,721 

Other Projects Supported by Industry  143,872  221,912 

Arbor Consultancies  94,235  101,870 

TOTAL EXPENSES  4,875,738  4,973,993 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  323,735  45,790 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Changes in Asset Revaluation Reserve 7b (1,626,481) (2,569,764)

COMPREHENSIVE RESULT (1,302,746) (2,523,974)

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Statement of Financial 
Position as at 30 June 2014

 2014  2013  2013 

 Restated 

Note  $  $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 10  1,274,167  717,299  717,299 

Trade and Other Receivables 4  49,742  100,447  100,447 

Inventories 5  111,495  95,840  95,840 

Other Current Assets 6  -  -  - 

 1,435,404  913,586  913,586 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Infrastructure & Equipment 7  9,998,166  11,729,522  11,729,522 

 9,998,166  11,729,522  11,729,522 

TOTAL ASSETS  11,433,570  12,643,108  12,643,108 

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 8  202,289  183,455  183,455 

Provisions 9  456,344  421,557  252,389 

 658,633  605,012  435,844 

NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provisions 9  192,639  153,052  189,432 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  851,272  758,064  625,276 

NET ASSETS  10,582,298  11,885,044  12,017,832 

Represented by:

EQUITY

Retained Profits  345,317  21,582  154,370 

Reserves 19  10,236,981  11,863,462  11,863,462 

TOTAL EQUITY  10,582,298  11,885,044  12,017,832

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the Year Ended 30 June 2014

 2014  2013 

Note  $  $ 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Grants received  3,019,878  3,240,926 

Donations received  522,856  128,172 

Receipts from sales  1,947,876  2,033,203 

Payments to suppliers and employees (4,816,194) (5,012,174)

Interest received  80,703  66,223 

Net cash from/(used by) operating activities 17  755,119  456,350 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Payments for non current assets (198,252) (27,584)

Net cash used by investing activities (198,252) (27,584)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held  556,867  428,766 

Cash at the beginning of the financial year  717,300  288,534 

Cash at the end of the financial year 10  1,274,167  717,300

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the Year Ended 30 June 2014

Note  Retained Earnings  Asset Revaluation Reserve  Total 

 $  $  $ 

Balance at 30 June 2012 (24,208)  14,433,226  14,409,018 

Changes:

Total Comprehensive Result  45,790 (2,569,764) (2,523,974)

Balance at 30 June 2013 19  21,582  11,863,462  11,885,044 

Changes:

Total Comprehensive Result  323,735 (1,626,481) (1,302,746)

Balance at 30 June 2014 19  345,317  10,236,981  10,582,298

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

The following explains the significant accounting policies that have 

been adopted in the preparation of the financial report of the 

Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens (‘RTBG’).  

Objectives and Funding

The Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens (RTBG) is a State 

Government statutory organisation, governed by the Royal 

Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Act 2002 and is administered 

by the Department of Primary Industry, Parks, Water and the 

Environment (DPIPWE). The seven-member RTBG Board is 

appointed by, and reports to, the Minister for Environment, Parks 

and Heritage. The Board is responsible for managing, conserving 

and enhancing the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens in 

accordance with the Act.  

The RTBG is Tasmania’s only botanical gardens and is custodian 

of the state’s botanical collections. In addition to responsibility for 

the management of Tasmania’s botanical collections and associated 

functions, the Gardens is responsible for the development and 

delivery of horticultural and botanical based community education 

and learning programmes, the provision of visitor facilities and 

services, the development and delivery of innovative and engaging 

interpretation and information services, and the conservation and 

presentation of the significant built and cultural heritage of the site 

in accordance with the RTBG Strategic Master Plan 2009-2029.

An annual appropriation is received through DPIPWE accounting 

for 49% of the Garden’s income with the remaining funds being 

generated through RTBG programs and initiatives.

Basis of Accounting  

The financial statements are a general purpose financial report 

and have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 

the Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens Act 2002, and Australian 

Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 

Accounting Standards Board (AASB).  

The financial report has also been prepared on an accruals basis 

and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of 

selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities 

for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied. 

Compliance with the Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) 

may not result in compliance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards, as the AAS include requirements and options available 

to not-for-profit organisations that are inconsistent with IFRS. The 

RTBG is considered to be not-for-profit and has adopted some 

accounting policies under the AAS that do not comply with IFRS.

The Financial Statements have been prepared as a going concern. 

The continued existence of the RTBG in its present form, 

undertaking its current activities, is dependent on Government 

policy and on continuing appropriations by Parliament for the 

RTBG’s administration and activities. 

These Financial Statements are presented in Australian dollars, 

which is the RTBG’s functional currency.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies 

adopted by the RTBG in the preparation of the financial 

statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, 

unless otherwise stated.

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

Impact of new and revised Accounting Standards yet to be applied.

The AASB has issued a number of new and amended Accounting 

Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory application 

dates for future reporting periods, some of which are relevant to 

the entity. The entity has decided not to early adopt any of the new 

and amended pronouncements. The entity’s assessment of the new 

and amended pronouncements that are relevant but applicable in 

future reporting periods is set out below: 

•		 AASB	9:	Financial	Instruments(December	2010)	 and	AASB	

2010–7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

arising from AASB 9(December 2010)(applicable for annual 

reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013). 

The potential financial impact of the standard has not yet been 

determined. 

•	 AASB	2012-3:	Amendments	to	Australian	Accounting	

Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 

(applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on or after 

1 January 2014). The potential financial impact of the standard 

has not yet been determined. 

•	 AASB	2013–3:	Amendments	to	AASB	136	–	Recoverable	

Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets(applicable for 

annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 

2014). The potential financial impact of the standard has not 

yet been determined. 

Accounting Policies

(a) Income Tax

The RTBG is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe 

Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax.

(b) Property, Infrastructure and Equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure 

that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. 

The costs of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials 

and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing  
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the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs 

of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on 

which they are located. Purchased software that is integral to 

the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part 

of that equipment. In the event that settlement of all or part of 

the purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined by 

discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present 

value as at the date of acquisition. Depreciation is provided on 

property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but 

excluding land. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so 

as to write off the net cost or other revalued amount of each asset 

over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. The 

estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method is 

reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of asset are:

Class of Fixed Asset  Depreciation Rate 

Vehicles 10%

Computers 33%

Plant and Equipment 20%-33%

Shop Fittings 25%

Roads & Paths 4%

Walls 1%

Fences & Gates 4%

Buildings 2.5%

Discovery Centre Interpretation 20%

Pergolas and Gardens Features 4%

Ponds and Water Features 4%

Water Services & Irrigation 6.67%

Stormwater 3%

Sewer 3%

Utility Services Infrastructure 4%

Asset Recognition Threshold

The asset capitalisation threshold adopted by RTBG is $10 000 

plus any other assets where it is considered appropriate. 

Asset valued at less than $10 000 are charged to the Statement 

of Comprehensive Income in the year of purchase (other than 

where they form part of a group of similar items which are 

significant in total). 

(c) Revaluation of Property and Infrastructure

Valuation Basis

All assets, with the exception of plant & equipment and computers 

are measured on the fair value basis. Fair value is determined 

on the basis of an independent valuation prepared by external 

valuation experts. The fair values are recognised in the financial 

statements of the entity, and are reviewed at the end of each 

reporting period to ensure that the carrying value of land and 

buildings is not materially different from their fair values.

Revaluation increments and decrements arising from recognising 

land and buildings at their fair values are offset against one 

another within the class of assets. Net revaluation increments in 

the carrying amounts of land and buildings are recognised directly 

in the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that the 

increment reverses a decrement that was previously recognised as 

an expense in the net profit or loss in respect of the same class of 

assets, in which case the increment is recognised as revenue in net 

profit or loss. Net revaluation decrements in the carrying amounts 

of land and buildings are recognised as an expense in profit or 

loss, except to the extent that the decrement reverses a previous 

revaluation increment in respect of the same class of assets 

credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve, in which case the 

decrement is debited directly to reserve to the extent that a credit 

exists in respect of the same class of assets. 

All other non-current physical assets are recorded at historic cost 

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

RTBG adopted a revaluation threshold of $1 000. Assets are 

revalued on a rolling program of five years. In accordance with 

AASB116 Property Plant and Equipment, in years between 

valuations, indices will be supplied by qualified valuers to index 

valuations to fair value. The revaluation cycle will continue with 

infrastructure assets to be valued next financial year. Assets are 

revalued with sufficient regularity to ensure they reflect fair value 

at balance date.

(d) Employee Benefits

Employee benefits include entitlements to wages and salaries, 

annual leave, sick leave, long service leave, superannuation and any 

other post-employment benefits.

Liabilities for wages and salaries and annual leave are recognised 

when an employee becomes entitled to receive a benefit. Those 

liabilities eligible to be taken within twelve months are measured 

as the amount expected to be paid. Other employee benefits are 

measured as the present value of the benefit at 30 June 2013, 

where the impact of discounting is material, and the amount 

expected to be paid is not material. A liability for long service leave 

is recognised, and is measured as the present value of expected 

future payments to be made in respect of services provided by 

employees up to the reporting date. 

Sick leave entitlements are not vested in employees and are not 

considered to give rise to a liability therefore no provision is made.

Superannuation contributions are made by RTBG to various 

complying superannuation funds and are charged as expenses 

when incurred. Contributions made on behalf of employees 

appointed on or after 15th May 1999 are made in accordance with 

Public Sector Superannuation Reform Act 1999.

(e) Cash

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes 

Cash on Hand, Cash at Bank and short term deposits of 6 months 

or less.
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(f) Revenue and Expenses

Revenue from government, whether recurrent or capital, 

are recognised as revenues in the period in which the RTBG 

gains control of the appropriated funds. Grants payable by the 

Government are recognised as revenue when the RTBG gains 

control of the underlying assets. Where grants are reciprocal, 

revenue is recognised as performance occurs under the grant. 

Non-reciprocal grants are recognised as revenue when the grant 

is received or receivable. Conditional grants may be reciprocal or 

non-reciprocal depending on the terms of the grant.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant 

risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. 

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised upon the 

delivery of the service to customers.

Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis taking into 

account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a 

decrease in asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be 

measured reliably.

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount 

of Goods and Services Tax, except where the GST incurred is not 

recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. Receivables and 

payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount recoverable, 

or payable, to the Australian Taxation Office is recognised as an 

asset or liability within the Statement of Financial Position.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, the GST component of cash flows 

arising from operating, investing or financing activities which is 

recoverable from, or payable to, the Australian Taxation Office is, 

in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, classified 

as operating cash flows.

(h) Payables

Payables, including goods received and services incurred but not 

yet invoiced, are recognised at amortised cost, which due to the 

short settlement period, equates to face value, when the RTBG 

becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase 

of assets or services.

(i) Receivables

Receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any impairment 

losses, however, due to the short settlement period, receivables are 

not discounted back to their present value. 

(j) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(k) Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Gains or losses from the sale of non-current assets are recognised 

when control of the assets has passed to the buyer.

(l) Comparative Figures

Where required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures 

have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for 

the current financial year.

(m) Impairment of Assets

All non-financial assets are assessed to determine whether any 

impairment exists. Impairment exists when the recoverable amount 

of an asset is less than its carrying amount. Recoverable amount 

is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The 

RTBG’s assets are not used for the purpose of generating cash flows; 

therefore value in use is based on depreciated replacement cost 

where the asset would be replaced if deprived of it. All impairment 

losses are recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income. In 

respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods 

are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss 

has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 

if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the 

extend that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 

amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

(n) Judgements and Assumptions

In the application of Australian Accounting Standards, the RTBG 

is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about 

carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent 

from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 

based on historical experience and various other factors that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of 

which form the basis of making the judgements. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are 

reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 

are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 

revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and 

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Judgements made by the RTBG that have significant effects on 

the Financial Statements are disclosed in the relevant notes to the 

Financial Statements. This includes Note 1d for Employee Benefits. 

The RTBG has made no assumptions concerning the future that may 

cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next reporting period.

(o) Prior Year Error

A prior period error was identified in 2013-14 relating to the 

provisions for long service leave and annual leave. A payroll report 

omitted six employees from the calculation of long service and annual 

leave as at 30 June 2013 which resulted in the following impact.

Provisions

Business 

Operations 

Expenses

Retained 

Profits

30 June 2013 

previously reported
 441,821  622,012  154,370 

Impact of error  132,788  132,788  (132,788)

30 June 2013 Restated  574,609  754,800  21,582
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2014 

$

2013 

$

2 Remuneration and Retirement Benefits of Board

 (a) Board Remuneration 

Fees paid or payable to all Board 

members 
 3,633  3,979 

Salary Band $10,000 and above – –

Salary Band $0 to $9,999  1  1 

The names of Board members who have held office during the 

financial year are: 

Mr D Bugg (Chair) 

Mr S Gadd 

Mr R Viney 

Ms N McKibben 

Mr K Evans (Until 08/05/2014) 

Mr J Whittington (16/06/2014) 

Prof M Britz 

Mr D Davey (19/12/2013) 

In 2013 only one board member elected to be paid their 

remuneration.

(b) Retirement and Superannuation 

Payments 
 218  324 

Amounts paid directly to a prescribed superannuation fund for the 

provision of retirement benefits for Ms N McKibben.

Other Related Party Transactions

There have been no related party transactions during the year, 

other than the disclosures relating to Board Remuneration above.

3 Auditor’s Remuneration

The total of fees paid or due and payable to the Auditor-General 

for the financial year, is as follows:

Fees for Audit  12,450  12,020 

 12,450  12,020 

4 Receivables

CURRENT: 

Trade Debtors  48,426  99,630 

Interest Due  1,316  817 

GST Refund – –

 49,742  100,447 

Less: – –

Provision for Impairment  49,742  100,447 

The RTBG offers 30 days terms of trade and receivables that are 

neither past due nor impaired are considered to be of sound credit 

quality. 

2014 

$

2013 

$

 

5 Inventories

CURRENT: 

Retail stock–at cost  101,045  85,189 

Restaurant stock–at cost  10,450  10,651 

 111,495  95,840 

6 Other Assets

CURRENT:

Prepayments – –

– –

7 Property, Infrastructure and Equipment 

Land at Fair Value: 

Valuer-General’s Valuation  1,852,745  1,852,745 

Less Revaluation 2012  (124,134)  (124,134)

 1,728,611  1,728,611 

Buildings at: 

Revaluation June 2014  4,787,137  4,549,593 

Less Accumulated Depreciation – –

 4,787,137  4,549,593 

Roads/Paths at: 

Revaluation June 2014  946,294  1,364,161 

Less Accumulated Depreciation – –

 946,294  1,364,161 

Walls at: 

Revaluation June 2014  810,275  1,645,569 

Less Accumulated Depreciation – –

 810,275  1,645,569 

Fences/Gates at: 

Revaluation June 2014  225,081  334,845 

Less Accumulated Depreciation – –

 225,081  334,845 

Pergolas/Garden Elements at: 

Revaluation June 2014  214,644  376,816 

Less Accumulated Depreciation –  (33,867)

 214,644  342,949 

Ponds/Water Features at: 

Revaluation June 2014  371,955  711,012 

Less Accumulated Depreciation –  (63,899)

 371,955  647,113 

Water Services/Irrigation at: 

Revaluation June 2014  304,542  430,097 

Less Accumulated Depreciation –  (76,100)

 304,542  353,997 
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2014 

$

2013 

$

Stormwater at: 

Revaluation June 2014  98,556  99,040 

Less Accumulated Depreciation – –

 98,556  99,040 

Sewer at: 

Revaluation June 2014  255,934  451,767 

Less Accumulated Depreciation –  (29,458)

 255,934  422,309 

Utility Services Infrastructure at: 

Revaluation June 2012  176,193  146,193 

Less Accumulated Depreciation  (18,848)  (12,100)

 157,345  134,093 

Plant and Equipment at Cost  723,447  693,972 

Less Accumulated Depreciation  (633,430)  (589,117)

 90,017  104,855 

Computers  97,880  89,893 

Less Accumulated Depreciation  (90,105)  (87,506)

 7,775  2,387 

Total Property, Infrastructure & 

Equipment
 9,998,166  11,729,522 

Land was revalued as at 30 June 2011 by the Valuer General. 

Bulidings were revalued as at 30 June 2013 by a qualified 

valuer, Campbell Palfrey and indexed to 30 June 2014. 

Roads/paths, walls and fences/gates were also revalued as at 

30 June 2014 by a qualified valuer, Campbell Palfrey. 

Pergolas/garden elements, ponds/water features, sewer and 

stormwater were indexed in 2013-14. Water services/irrigation 

and utility services infrastructure were revalued as at 30 June 

2006 by Davis Langdon and will be revalued in 2015.  

Fair Value Hierarchy 

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based 

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements 

are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 

for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 

measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within 

Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

There have been no transfers between levels during the 

current year. 

(a) Measurement of Fair Value

Asset 

 Fair Value 

as at 30 June 

2014 ($) 

 Fair Value 

as at 30 June 

2013 ($) 

 Fair Value 

Hierarchy 

 Valuation Technique 

& Key Inputs 

 Significant 

Unobservable Inputs 

 Relationship of 

Unobservable 

Inputs to Fair Value 

Land  1,728,611  1,728,611  Level 3 
 Specialist Advice & 

Indexation 
 Index rate 

 Higher rates lead to 

higher fair value 

Buildings  4,787,139  4,549,593  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 5-175 yrs 

Index Rate: 8% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Roads/Paths  946,293  1,364,160  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 15-63 yrs 

Index Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Walls  810,275  1,645,569  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 5-400 yrs 

Index Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Fences/Gates  225,081  334,845  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 20-363 yrs 

Index Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Pergolas/

Garden 

Elements 

 214,644  342,949  Level 3 

 Specialist Advice, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 10-50 yrs 

Index Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Ponds/Water 

Features 
 371,955  647,113  Level 3 

 Specialist Advice, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 25 yrs Index 

Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 
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Asset 

 Fair Value 

as at 30 June 

2014 ($) 

 Fair Value 

as at 30 June 

2013 ($) 

 Fair Value 

Hierarchy 

 Valuation Technique 

& Key Inputs 

 Significant 

Unobservable Inputs 

 Relationship of 

Unobservable 

Inputs to Fair Value 

Water Services/

Irrigation 
 304,542  353,997  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 12-25 yrs 

Index Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Stormwater  98,556  99,040  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 25-50 yrs 

Index Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Sewer  255,934  422,309  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Useful Life: 20-50 yrs 

Index Rate: 2.63% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

Utility Services 

Infrastructure 
 157,345  134,093  Level 3 

 Replacement Rates, 

Indexation & Estimated 

Useful Life 

 Index Rate 0.25% 

 Higher rates & 

useful lives lead to 

higher fair value 

(b) Fair Value Reconciliation

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of asset between the beginning and the end of the current financial year.

2013

Balance at 

beginning of 

year 

Additions & 

Acquisitions Disposals 

Unrealised Fair 

Value Changes 

recognised in Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

Depreciation 

Expense Impairment

Carrying 

Amount at end 

of year 

Land  1,728,611  -  -  -  -  -  1,728,611 

Buildings  5,544,730  -  -  (852,281)  (142,856)  -  4,549,593 

Roads/Paths  1,863,790  -  -  (421,165)  (78,465)  -  1,364,160 

Walls  2,612,601  -  -  (940,629)  (26,403)  -  1,645,569 

Fences/Gates  431,266  -  -  (78,267)  (18,154)  -  334,845 

Pergolas/Garden Elements  358,022  -  -  -  (15,073)  -  342,949 

Ponds/Water Features  675,553  -  -  -  (28,440)  -  647,113 

Water Services/Irrigation  384,104  -  -  -  (30,107)  -  353,997 

Stormwater  388,522  -  -  (277,422)  (12,060)  -  99,040 

Sewer  435,862  -  -  -  (13,553)  -  422,309 

Utility Services Infrastructure  139,941  -  -  -  (5,848)  -  134,093 

Plant & Equipment  127,563  27,587  -  -  (50,295)  -  104,855 

Computers  4,878  -  -  -  (2,489)  -  2,389 

 14,695,443  27,587  -  (2,569,764)  (423,743)  -  11,729,523 

2014 

Land  1,728,611  -  -  -  -  -  1,728,611 

Buildings  4,549,593  -  -  354,605  (117,059)  -  4,787,139 

Roads/Paths  1,364,160  -  -  (360,888)  (56,979)  -  946,293 

Walls  1,645,569  65,601  -  (885,516)  (15,379)  -  810,275 

Fences/Gates  334,845  65,601  -  (168,756)  (6,609)  -  225,081 

Pergolas/Garden Elements  342,949  -  -  (117,175)  (11,130)  -  214,644 

Ponds/Water Features  647,113  -  -  (254,156)  (21,002)  -  371,955 

Water Services/Irrigation  353,997  -  -  (37,718)  (11,737)  -  304,542 

Stormwater  99,040  -  -  4,217  (4,701)  -  98,556 

Sewer  422,309  -  -  (161,091)  (5,284)  -  255,934 

Utility Services Infrastructure  134,093  30,000  -  -  (6,748)  -  157,345 

Plant & Equipment  104,855  29,056  -  -  (43,896)  -  90,015 

Computers  2,389  7,988  -  -  (2,601)  -  7,776 

 11,729,523  198,246  -  (1,626,478)  (303,125)  -  9,998,166 
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2014 

$

2013 

$

8 Trade and Other Payables

Trade Creditors  78,601  58,454 

Accrued Expenses  39,928  34,989 

Payroll Accruals  72,528  55,668 

GST Payable on June 

2014 BAS 

 11,232  34,344 

 TOTAL  202,289  183,455 

  

9 Provisions

2014 

 

$

2013 

Restated 

$

2013 

 

$

CURRENT

Annual Leave  245,285  224,142  117,306 

Long Service Leave  211,059  197,415  135,083 

TOTAL  456,344  421,557  252,389 

NON-CURRENT

Annual Leave  -  -  57,777 

Long Service Leave  192,639  153,052  131,655 

TOTAL  192,639  153,052  189,432 

10 Cash

Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement 

of Cash Flows is reconciled to items in the Statement of Financial 

Position as follows:

2014 

$

2013 

$

Cash on Hand  5,300  5,300 

Cash at Bank  621,086  585,029 

Cash at Bank - 24 Carrot School 

Gardens Project 

 333,604  - 

Term Deposits  314,177  126,970 

 1,274,167  717,299

11 Segment Information 

The entity operates principally in one industry segment being 

the management of all functions particular to the operations of a 

botanic gardens wholly within the State of Tasmania.

12 Grant Commitments 

These items have been included in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income in the relevant years the grants 

were received. The grant monies are spent as specified in the 

appropriate grant deed and this is not necessarily within the year 

the money is received.

The items mentioned below are the unspent proportion for this 

financial year.

2014 

$

2013 

$

Bequest  109,467  105,448 

Bequest Project  -  7,240 

Ruby Tung Yep Bequest  204,710  - 

Feeding the Future  36,372  - 

NRM Grant  285  2,760 

Seed Orchard Project  1,322  2,092 

Australian Orchard Foundation  5,802  2,500 

Azorella Conservation Fund  -  21,522 

Inspiring Australia Grant  8,327  12,465 

CFC Alpine Project  -  3,217 

Phytopthora cinnamomi Project  12,470  12,711 

MSB Miena Cider Gum Project  4,706  4,706 

Growing Orchids Project  2,000  1,000 

Hermon Slade Foundation Grant  30,079  13,000 

Living Learning Centre  390,190  351,000 

Tasmanian Community Food Garden  -  127,549 

IT Equipment  10,060  46,700 

Foreshor Revegetation Project  3,228  - 

Agrifood Skill Sets Project  2,500  - 

ASBP Field Work Grant  2,670  - 

24 Carrot Schools Gardens Projet  319,175  - 

TOTAL  1,143,363  713,910 

13 Operating Lease Commitments

Not later than 1 year  49,919  62,712 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 

years 

 11,880  61,237 

Later than 5 years  -  - 

Total Lease Commitments  61,799  123,949 

The operating lease commitments include electric vehicles, 

machinery and office equipment leases. All amounts are shown 

exclusive of GST. The RTBG currently has no other material 

commitments to disclose.

14 Contingent Assets & Liabilities 

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the 

Statement of Financial Position due to uncertainty regarding 

the amount or timing of the underlying claim or obligation. The 

RTBG currently has a contingent asset by way of an outstanding 

insurance claim settlement following a flood in the Visitor Centre in 

June 2013. The expected settlement is around $40,000. 

15 Economic Dependency 

The Royal Tasmanian Botanical Gardens derives its revenue 

principally from Government funding.   

 16 Events Occurring After Balance Date 

There have been no significant events subsequent to balance date 

which would materially alter the financial results shown in these 

financial statements.   
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2013 
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 17 Cash Flow Information

Reconciliations of Cash Flows from 

Ordinary Activities 

Operations with Operating Result 

Net operating balance  323,735  45,790 

Non Cash Flows in Operating Surplus 

Depreciation  303,125  423,743 

Net (Profit) Loss on Disposal Non-Current 

Assets 
 -  - 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

(Increase)/Decrease in Receivables  50,705  (32,665)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (15,654)  (2,074)

Movement in Provisions  74,374  32,928 

(Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments  -  3,000 

Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors & 

Accruals 
 18,834  (14,372)

Net Cash provided by Operating 

Activities 
 755,119  456,350 

18 Financial Instruments

Risk management policies

The RTBG has exposure to the following risks from its use of 

financial instruments: 

•		 	credit	risk;	

•		 	liquidity	risk;	and	

•		 	market	risk.	

The Director has overall responsibility for the establishment 

and oversight of the RTBG’s risk management framework. Risk 

management policies are established to identify and analyse risks 

faced by the RTBG, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and 

to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

(i) Credit risk exposures

Credit risk is the financial loss to the RTBG if a customer or 

counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet is contractual 

obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the 

Financial Statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents 

the RTBG’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into 

account of any collateral or other security.

There has been no change to credit risk policy since the previous 

reporting period.

Based on historic payment behaviour and analysis of the underlying 

customers’ credit ratings the RTBG currently believes that all debts 

due and payable at reporting date will be received, therefore no 

provision has been made for impairment.

The RTBG undertakes credit transactions with a large number of 

customers thereby avoiding the credit risk.

(ii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the RTBG will not be able to meet 

its financial obligations as they fall due. The RTBG’s approach to 

managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due.

Financial liabilities comprising accounts payable amounting to 

$78,601(2013: $58,454), as disclosed in the balance sheet, all have 

a maturity period of less than 1 year.

The RTBG, analyses its liquidity requirements daily via 

reconciliation of its operating bank account and analysis of 

upcoming accounts payable transactions.

The RTBG expects that all payables accrued as at 30th June 2014 

will be paid within 30 days.

(iii)  Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a 

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. The primary market risk that the RTBG is exposed to is 

interest rate risk. 

There has been no change to policies in relation to market risk since 

the previous reporting period.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the RTBG’s 

interest bearing financial instruments was: 

2014 

$

2013 

$

Variable rate instruments 

Assets 

Cash  1,274,167  717,299 

Total  1,274,167  717,299 

Changes in the variable rates of 100 basis points at reporting date 

would have the following effect on the RTBG’s profit or loss and 

equity: 

Sensitivity analysis of the RTBG’s exposure to possible changes in 

interest rates.
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 Profit or Loss  Equity 

 100 Basis 

Point 

increase 

 100 Basis 

Point 

decrease 

 100 Basis 

Point 

increase 

 100 Basis 

Point 

decrease 

 $  $  $  $ 

30 June 2014 

Cash  12,742  (12,742)  12,742  (12,742)

Net sensitivity  12,742  (12,742)  12,742  (12,742)

30 June 2013 

Cash  7,172  (7,172)  7,172  (7,172)

Net sensitivity  7,172  (7,172)  7,172  (7,172)

All financial assets are unsecured.

The carrying amounts of financial assets included in the statement 

of financial position represent the RTBG’s maximum exposure to 

credit risk in relation to these assets. Where the RTBG has a right 

of set-off and intends to settle on a net basis, this set off has been 

reflected in the financial statements in accordance with accounting 

standards.

Net Fair Values

The net fair values for financial assets and liabilities approximates 

their carrying value. Financial assets consist of Cash and Trade and 

Other Receivables. Financial liabilities consist of Trade and other 

Payables.

19 Reserves

 Property & 

Infrastructure 

 Total 

2014  $  $ 

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at 1 July 2013  11,863,462  11,863,462

Revaluation Increments (1,626,481) (1,626,481)

Balance at 30 June 2014 10,236,981  10,236,981 

2013

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at 1 July 2012  14,433,226  14,433,226

Revaluation Increments (2,569,764) (2,569,764)

Balance at 30 June 2013 11,863,462  11,863,462 

20 Additional Information 

The principal place of business for the Royal Tasmanian Botanical 

Gardens is located at Queens Domain, Hobart, Tasmania.
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